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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHRSREEENRR I

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the results of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Operating Results

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue in the amount of
approximately HK$173,480,000 (2019: HK$158,060,000). The
Group’s revenue was principally derived from the exploration,
production and distribution of natural gas segment of approximately
HK$173,480,000 (2019: HK$158,060,000). During the year, the
money lending business segment did not contribute any revenue to
the Group (2019: Nil), and the sales of food and beverages segment
did not contribute any revenue to the Group (2019: Nil) either.

The Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company in the amount of approximately HK$14,173,000, as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$72,352,000 during last
year, mainly due to (i) the non-recurrence in 2020 of the impairment
and write-off of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
exploration and evaluation assets in 2019 of approximately
HK$131,673,000; and (ii) the fair value gain in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$5,205,000 in 2020
as compared to the fair value loss of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$26,758,000 in 2019, but
partially offset by the decrease in deferred tax credit of
HK107,280,000. Loss per share attributable to the owners of the
Company was 0.15 HK cents (2019: loss per share of 0.76 HK cents).

Business Review

Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas Segment

The Petroleum Contract

The Company'’s indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, China Era Energy
Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China Era”) entered into a
petroleum contract with China National Petroleum Corporation
("CNPC") for the drilling, exploration, development and production of
oil and/or natural gas within the specified site located in North Kashi
Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang, PRC (the “Petroleum Contract”). The
Petroleum Contract is for a term of 30 years commencing 1 June 20009.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEAEEENRR DT

Under the Petroleum Contract, China Era shall apply its appropriate
and advanced technology and management expertise and assign its
competent experts to perform exploration, development and
production of oil and/or natural gas within the site. In the event that
any oil field and/or gas field is discovered within the site, the
development and production costs shall be borne by CNPC and
China Era in the proportion of 51% and 49%, respectively.

According to the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6
years. The management has devoted much of its resources during
the period in exploration and research studies. On 6 December 2017,
China Era and CNPC entered into a supplemental and amendment
agreement to the Petroleum Contract (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) extending the First Phase exploration period to 5
December 2017 and agreeing on the aggregation of the costs
incurred by CNPC between 1 June 2009 and 5 December 2017 with
the pre-contract costs. The costs incurred between 1 June 2009 and
31 December 2015 was in the amount of RMB651,653,000 (mainly
including three completed wells, reconstruction of natural gas
processing plant and the operating costs incurred during the period).
In 2018, the cost incurred by CNPC between 1 January 2016 and 31
December 2017 in the amount of approximately RMB94,042,000
was confirmed. On 20 June 2019, China Era and CNPC entered into
a second supplemental agreement to the Petroleum Contract (the
“2nd Supplemental Agreement”), setting out the agreed amount
of profit sharing between 2009 and 2017.

The filing of the Overall Development Program (“ODP") was
completed on 8 July 2019, and the development period of the Kashi
Project commenced with effect from 9 July 2019. Following the
operation of the new gas processing facilities on 1 July 2020, the
Joint Management Committee of North Kashi Block Cooperation
Project resolved that the commercial production stage commenced
with effect from 1 October 2020.

The Status of Gas Sales Agreements

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2020,
the Gas Sales Agreements ("GSA") was signed on 27 April 2020,
setting out provisions such as volume commitments, gas quality,
price terms, delivery obligations and delivery point.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TR BT EE WD

Segment Performance

During the year, this operation together with the natural gas
distribution operation in Karamay, Xinjiang contributes revenue of
approximately HK$173,480,000 (2019: HK$158,060,000) and the
segment loss before income tax was approximately HK$4,700,000

(2019: HK$137,024,000).

The results of operations in exploration, production and distribution
of natural gas segment and costs incurred for exploration and
evaluation assets acquisition and exploration activities are shown as

below:

(@)  Results of operations in exploration, production, and

distribution of natural gas segment

Revenue

Direct cost

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Operating expenses

Depreciation

Written off on exploration and evaluation
assets

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

Impairment and amortisation of intangible
assets

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Finance cost

Results of operations before income tax

TEBRE

FN - REBEABRAIBKRARDHEER
& B U 25 49173,480,0008 L ( — & — AL & -
158,060,000/% 7T ) * M F W 5 & b AT 15 5
Al &5 18 49 /& 4,700,0005 T ( — & — AL F
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FET FET
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BHEMA (45,406) (42,184)
H A 7,154 1,457
HE RS HEFE (30,308) (24,316)
KR (37,273) (46,569)
e (32,863) (15,474)

M ENR KA E
- (37,673)

PR R HEEERE
- (1,000)

B EERME RS
(22,867) (76,458)

Y% - B REERE

- (33,000)
B E R AR (16,617) (19,867)
BRETISIRIE S S (4,700) (137,024)
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEAEEENRR DT

(b)  Costs incurred for exploration and evaluation assets acquisitions

and exploration activities

BIRARAR

Exploration cost

Information of Gas Reserves

In 2019, the Group engaged an independent third party consulting
firm to perform the review on the reserves which was conducted in
accordance with Petroleum Resources Management System, an
international recognised reserve standards and guideline. The
following table summarised the estimates of Group’s 49% net
entitlement interests of the gas reserve in the Petroleum Contract as
at 31 December 2020.

b) BERFGEERERGFEHEEZ
2N

2020 2019
—g-®F T AF
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#T FHETT
71,104 19,282
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BERG (BRRB AR ERERES)ET R
ZCEFE+_A=1T—B TREAAHED
PAEEERFEERENA9% FITEEERD
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Natural gas
RAR
(BMP)
(+1EZF72K)
As at Production As at
31 December activity during 31 December
2019 the year 2020
IS i
—T-NF FA —ETHF
+ZA=+—8H ZHEER +=ZA=+—8H
Proved (1P) FEUP) 6.83 (0.20) 6.63
Proved and Probable (2P) FE ML (2P) 9.19 (0.20) 8.99

Reserves are determined through analysis of geological and
engineering data which appear, with reasonable certainty, to be
economically productive in the future from known and discovered oil
and natural gas reservoirs under existing economic and operating
conditions. Both deterministic and probabilistic methods are used in
reserves estimation. When probabilistic method is used, there should
be at least a 90% probability (for Proved Reserve or "1P") that the
quantities actually recovered will equal or exceed the estimate and
there should be at least a 50% probability (for Proved and Probable
Reserve or “2P") that the quantity actually recovered will equal or
exceed the estimate.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRABHRSREEENRR I

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The Group did not record any revenue from the sales of food and
beverages business segment in 2020 and 2019. The segment loss
before tax was approximately HK$ 1,187,000 (2019: HK$1,460,000).
No revenue was recorded during the year, mainly due to the Group'’s
intention to reduce reliance on sales of food and beverage. We will
continue to keep track of the economic environment and review the
future allocation of resource as and when required.

Money Lending Business

The Group did not generate any revenue in 2020 and 2019 from the
money lending business operated by its indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, Zhong Neng Finance Ltd., a licensed money lender under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap.163, Laws of Hong Kong). The
segment loss before tax was approximately HK$145,000 (2019:
HK$168,000). The Group continued to adopt a stringent credit policy
to mitigate the credit risk arising from the money lending business.

Financial Review
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has outstanding secured other
borrowings of approximately HK$389,400,000 (2019: Nil). The cash
and cash equivalents of the Group were approximately
HK$167,985,000 (2019: HK$226,798,000). The Group's current
ratio (current assets to current liabilities) was approximately 50.4%
(2019: 59.7%). The ratio of total liabilities to total assets of the
Group was approximately 41.6% (2019: 37.1%,).

As at 31 December 2020, the convertible notes due in 2041 has an
outstanding principal amount of HK$679,670,000. These convertible
notes do not carry any interest, but carry the right to convert the
principal amount into ordinary shares of the Company. The
conversion price is HK$0.168 per share (subject to adjustments).
A maximum number of 4,045,654,761 shares may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the
convertible notes in full. During the year, no convertible note was
converted to ordinary shares of the Company.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRASHEEEEEN RS

Charge of Assets

Account receivables in the amount of approximately HK$78,334,000
were pledged as security for other borrowings as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK dollar
and Renminbi exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market
trends have always been the concern of the Group. It is the policy of
the Group to have its operating entities conduct their transactions in
their respective local currencies to minimise currency risks. The
Group, after reviewing its exposure for the time being, did not enter
into any derivative contracts during the year. The management will
monitor foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure if necessary.

Capital Commitments

The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$115,501,000 (of which approximately HK$36,151,000 would be
borne by CNPC) (2019: HK$522,640,000 of which approximately
HK$199,564,000 would be borne by CNPC) and HK$129,800,000
(2019: HK$121,000,000) as at 31 December 2020 in respect of
capital expenditure of exploration, production and distribution of
natural gas segment and capital contributions in a subsidiary
respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total workforce of 46
(2019: 50). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
work performance, working experiences, professional qualifications
and the prevailing market practice.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THAHREETEENRE DN

Additional Disclosure Regarding the Modified
Opinion

The auditors of the Company issued a qualified opinion in the
independent auditors’ report relating to the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020. In view of the qualified opinion, the Board would like to
provide the following additional information.

As set out in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “2018 Annual Report”), the previous auditors
of the Company issued disclaimer of opinion in the independent
auditors’ report relating to the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Further information regarding the disclaimer of opinion for the year
2018 is set out on pages 11 to 15 of the 2018 Annual Report.

As stated in the independent auditors’ report, the existing auditors
have not been provided with sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
ascertain the carrying amount of exploration and evaluation assets,
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and deferred tax
assets/liabilities brought forward from 31 December 2018, and any
adjustments of these items may have a consequential effect on the
Group's financial performance and cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

The qualified opinion is because of the comparative figures, opening
balance and consequential effect of the bases for modified opinion
relating to the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group in previous years. These bases for qualified opinion did not
arise from different judgments in the valuation and impairment of
balance sheet items in the current year between the Company’s
Directors and the existing auditors. The audit committee concurred
with the Company’s Directors in the valuation and impairment of the
balance sheet items in the current year and the previous year. Since
the bases for qualified opinion this year is principally the consequence
brought forward from the bases for modified opinion in previous
years, barring unforeseen circumstances which may arise after the
date hereof over the relevant balance sheet items, the Company’s
Directors do not expect these bases of qualification to recur in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2021.

1 0 China Energy Development Holdings Limited &1
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRASHEEEEEN RS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has suffered a loss
of HK$14,696,000 and at the end of reporting period, its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$329,524,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2020 are mainly
attributable to property, plant and equipment/exploration and
evaluation cost payables in the amount of HK$474,364,000 (31
December 2019: HK$419,069,000). The directors of the Company
are of the view that the Group will be able to successfully persuade
these contractors not to insist on repayment. However, there is no
certainty that these contractors will not demand repayment.

In view of the net current liabilities position, the Directors have
carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period of not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period based on certain underlying assumptions including (i)
financial support from a shareholder not to demand repayment
within 12 months; (i) the Group being able to successfully persuade
contractors not to insist on repayment of the construction cost
payables; and (iii) the Group being able to raise adequate funding
through bank borrowings or otherwise. Taking into account the
above assumptions, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the twelve months from
31 December 2020.

During the audit process, the audit committee discussed with the
management during which the management presented the financial
highlights and conveyed the key audit matters expressed by the
auditors. After considering the circumstances surrounding the key
audit matters and the management’s presentation, the audit
committee concurred with the management’s judgments regarding
the valuation of the assets during the impairment testing assessments
and the going concern basis of the financial statements.

HEZZ-ZEF+-_A=+—HLFE &
B E £ E518 14,696,0008 7T » N HEEIK -
AEERE B ERLREEE % 329,524,000
BIL e ZERNARMEFEERTHBARE - ‘J
U AEEEEGRESEBKREANRRM
It AEE T ZFE%%%‘ &EP“EEE%S
ERBHREAE

AEENR_E-_TF+-_A=+—HZR®HE
TEIEIW’EH%% s Ko A, iR M T
HER - £%85474,364,000/8 T (ZE—N4EF
+=-A=4+—H8 : 419,069,000 ) ° &NA A
EEZRAEAEEBERDSRREZSEERTE
HEMNEEER - Am - BEAREZSEED
BT EESIER -

ERRBAaEFE MR %%ﬂﬁTﬂ%?
HERE  HYAEEHBEHREBA T DR
T EAMNRERERETT .:J*FZEH%F‘?
B ()VRE—BREZEZTN2HEAREEZ
WIS E R (i) ANEEEER I At IR E S T B F
BNREENER ki) AEEEEBRTE
ﬁiﬁmﬁﬁ%%&%ﬁﬁo@%ﬁimﬁ

CARREERALEEBRERHEEEAS
NWEBTEBR-ZZE-ZEF+_A=+—HK
+Z@AARNB IS EL -

RZBERT  BELZBHREEECETH
i M EEEC 25 M5 H 2 R EEZEE
PR AR EREIR - KERHRERER
ZERREEEZI 2 ERIEL  BEZEREER
EEEEBEHAMREAANGHENEE (M
BRMBRRZFELEEE I -

Annual Report £ 2020 11



CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

THAHREETEENRE DN

As explained above, the perceived uncertainties on the audit
modifications in 2018 have been addressed in 2019, and the
modified opinion in the current year is only the consequential effect
of modified opinion in previous years. The Directors will continue to
negotiate with banks and other financiers, financial institutions and
potentially interested investors with the view to obtaining new
funding whether by way of equity or debt financing to improve of
the Company’s financial position and/or liquidity.

Prospects

Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas

The project details and key milestones for the Kashi Project were
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 3 December 2010. In
essence, the Petroleum Contract covers an exploration period of up
to six years (which was already extended by CNPC pursuant to the
Supplemental Contract), a development period and a production
period. The development period commences on the date after the
date of filing completion of the ODP and ends on the date of the
completion of the development operations required by the ODP to
be completed during the development period. The end of the
development period also signifies the commencement of the
commercial production of the project and hence the production
period, which runs for fifteen years for an oil field and twenty years
for a gas field (subject to extension with the approval of the
government).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 July 2019,
the filing of the ODP of Kashi Project was completed on 8 July 2019
and the development period commenced with effect from 9 July
2019. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April
2020, the GSA was signed on 27 April 2020. Following the operation
of the new gas processing facilities on 1 July 2020, the Joint
Management Committee of North Kashi Block Cooperation Project
resolved that the commercial production stage commenced with
effect from 1 October 2020. The Company’s management will
continue to follow up with potential lenders and investors with the
view to secure additional debt and/or equity funding to finance the
further development of the project.

1 2 China Energy Development Holdings Limited &1
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBAREEAEEENRR DT

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The management has taken a cautious approach to manage the
operations of the food and beverages segment. The Group will assess
the value and performance of this segment from time to time, and
continue to keep track of the economic environment and review the
future allocation of resources as and when required.

Money Lending Business

The management will continue to look for high quality borrowers in
order to minimise the risk of default. The management has taken a
cautious approach in money lending business in view of the Group’s
current financial position.

Appreciation

Looking forward, we will continue our existing strategy of fostering
opportunity for sustainable growth with the aim of enhancing return
for our shareholders. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our team of
devoted staff for their outstanding service and to our shareholders
for your continued support.

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEZRE

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang, aged 63, joined the Company as an executive
director in December 2009 and was elected as the chief executive
officer on 29 December 2009. He graduated from his study for
Physics at Qufu Normal University. He has nearly 35 years of working
experience in exploration and exploitation of petroleum industry. He
acted as senior engineer in Sinopec Shengli Oilfield Company (the
“Shengli Oilfield”) and was awarded the Top-notch talent from
China Petroleum & Chemical Shengli Oilfield. Mr. Zhao was
appointed as an alternative director to Dr. Gu Quan Rong on 29 June
2015.

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Gu Quan Rong, aged 56, joined the Company as a non-
executive director in September 2014. He obtained a bachelor degree
and a post-doctoral degree in Organic Chemistry from Nanjing
University in 1987 and 1996, respectively, and a doctorate degree in
mineral processing from China University of Mining & Technology,
Beijing in 1993. He is an expert in chemistry, energy, biodiesel and oil
and gas. Between 1996 and now, he held the positions of Associate
Professor, Professor and Vice Dean for Scientific Research in Nanjing
University, and had been a Visiting Scholar in Wayne State University,
United States and University of Regina, Canada and a Senior Research
Fellow in University of Alberta, Canada. He had worked with leading
oilfields in China such as Daging Oilfield, Shengli Qilfield and Dagang
Qilfield, and been the Chief Scientist of energy companies in North
America.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zong Ketao, aged 54, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in July 2015. He is a lawyer qualified to
practice law in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). He holds
a master degree in law from University of International Business and
Economics, China and a bachelor degree in law from Lanzhou
University, China. He has extensive experience in litigation and
arbitration, company law and laws relating to investment, finance,
energy, mining and capital market. From 1989 to 2000, he joined
Sinopec Shengli Oilfield Company Limited, an associate of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“Sinopec”), as a member of
their in-house legal department. From 2003 to 2004, he was
appointed as the senior legal supervisor of another group company
of Sinopec. Since 2005, he started his own private legal practice and
joined various law firms in the PRC as a partner.

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying, aged 52, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in January 2016. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member of the Certified Practicing
Accountants Australia. He holds a master’s degree in business law
from Monash University, Australia and a bachelor’s degree in
commerce accounting from The Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. He has extensive experience in finance and accounting, and
has worked as financial controller in various private and public listed
companies in Hong Kong, Singapore and the United States.

Mr. Lee Man Tai, aged 44, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in January 2016. He graduated from Lingnan
University, Hong Kong in 2000 with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration in financial services from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2010. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. He has approximately 20 years of professional experience
in accounting and auditing. He worked in audit firms between 2000
and 2006, and has occupied the positions of chief financial officer,
financial controller and company secretary of several listed companies
in Hong Kong between 2006 and 2016. He is an independent non-
executive director of Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1581) and Rizhao Port Jurong Co., Ltd. (stock code: 6117)
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a responsible
officer for type 1 and 6 regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Corporate Governance Report

EXRERME

Overview =

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance AR BB NHEIZRF 2 EEAKFERIEF
standard and procedures. The Board recognizes the importance of EHEWR BT XS AT EEHLK
and benefit from good corporate governance practices. We believe % - B FIMBEIRS X E LA TEBHARATAB
that improvement in corporate governance not only assists the — AESE it H 2 F5E1E - Jra] 3| B &#
Company in effective supervision and control on its business &% - AIREFHES NEE -

operation, but also attracts investment from international institutional
investors, thereby creating and enhancing shareholder value.

1. Corporate Governance Practices 1.

The Stock Exchange has promulgated the code provisions on
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the "CG
Code”). Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has complied itself with all CG Code except for the
following:

(@ Inrelation to A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO") should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual and the division of responsibilities between the
chairman and CEO should be clearly established and set
out in writing. During the year, Mr. Zhao Guogiang is the
CEO of the Company. During the year, the position of
chairman is vacated and the Board intends to identify
satisfiable candidate to fill the vacancy.

(b) In relation to E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting (the
“AGM") to answer questions raised up in the meeting.
During the year, the position of chairman is vacated, but
other Directors and members of the audit committee
were present at the AGM to answer questions from
Shareholders.

16 China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5 R B 2R AR A 7
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Corporate Governance Report

In relation to A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election while all directors should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. For the year under review, all independent non-
executive directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association. The management experience,
expertise and commitment of the re-electing Directors
will be considered by the nomination committee of the
Company before their re-election proposals are put
forward to Shareholders. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company's corporate governance practices regarding
Directors’ appointment are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.

In relation to A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors
should attend the Company’s AGM. Certain non-
executive Directors were unable to attend the Company’s
AGM held on 23 June 2020 due to other business
commitments and/or public health measures. However,
views expressed by shareholders at general meetings are
recorded and circulated for discussion by all directors
regardless of attendance. The Company intends to
arrange for video/audio conferencing channels to
facilitate Directors’ attendance.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems for
the Group to safeguard investments of the shareholders and
assets of the Company at all times. Such systems aim to help
achieving the Group'’s business objectives, safeguarding assets
and maintaining proper accounting records for provision of
reliable financial information. However, the design of the
systems is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement in the financial statements or
loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure when business objectives are being sought.

2.
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Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems covering all material controls in area of financial,
operational and compliance controls, various functions for risks
management as well as physical and information systems
security. The chief financial officer (the “CFO") has reported to
the audit committee from time to time during the year, in
conjunction with key findings identified by the external
auditors, findings and actions or measures taken in addressing
those internal controls. The audit committee in turn reports any
material issues to the Board. The Board, through the audit
committee, also sets targets for and reviews plan and progress
on continuous improvement work of the Company’s internal
control system with the CFO on a periodic basis.

Board of directors

(@)  Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
a total of five members including one executive director,
one non-executive director and three independent non-
executive directors. Members of the Board have different
professional and relevant industry experiences and
background so as to bring in valuable contribution and
advice for the development of the Group’s business. Up
to the date of this annual report, the Company has three
independent non-executive directors representing not
less than one-third of the Board, and two of them are
qualified accountants.

(b)  The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each incumbent independent non-executive director
of their independence to the Group. The Group
considered that all independent non-executive directors
meets the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines. The names of the
directors and their respective biographies are set out on
pages 14 to 15 of this annual report.
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The Board meets periodically with the management to
discuss the Group's strategies development and to review
the business operation. The Board also monitors and
controls financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s

EEREAHRE
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strategic objectives. The names of the directors during FEZEEUHERARANZEE
the financial year and their individual attendance of BEREAT :
meeting are set out below:
Attendance/number of meetings entitle to attend
HERE AREEZEEHA
Annual/
Extraordinary
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
BRREF/
#E Ex® ENZEe® FMZEE REZEE KEAE
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (CEO)  #8BI3& %4 (775 485) 44 NATER N/ANEF N/A R 01
Dr. Gu Quan Rong BrRAEL 4/4 33 11 Al 0/1
Mr. Zong Ketao RRIERAE 4/4 23 1/1 1N 01
Mr. Cheng Chun Ying BIRE S A 4/4 33 1/1 1N 11
Mr. Lee Man Tai FXRRE 4/4 33 17 1N ”n

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.
Each of the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed in writing their independence from the
Company in accordance with the guidelines on director
independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such directors to be independent.

The Board oversees the Group's strategic development
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of
the Group.

The major issues which were brought before the Board
for their decisions during the year include: (i) proposals
related to potential acquisition, investments, or any
significant capital expenditures; and (ii) formulation of
operational strategies and review of its financial
performance and results and the internal control system.
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The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets.

The Company has set up three Board committees,
namely, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, to oversee
particular aspect of the Group’s affairs, details of which
are set out in the relevant sections below.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management
and operations of the Group’s businesses to management
of the Group. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management
include the preparation of financial statements for Board
approval before publishing, execution of business
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, it has
given clear directions as to the powers of management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstance where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company.

In relation to A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors have
participated their own professional training by attending
seminar/programme/reading relevant materials in relation
to the business on directors’ duties.

The Company has attached much importance to the risk
management about directors’ liabilities and has arranged
appropriate liability insurance for Directors and senior
management of the Company. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.
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(m) The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own Code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors of the Company. All incumbent Directors
have confirmed following specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code through the year.

Board diversity policy

On 27 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code. On 31 March 2016, the
Company revised the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
recognizes that the Board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company.
In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and
educational background or professional experience. All Board
appointments are based on merits and considered against a
variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(@)  As at the date of this annual report, the Chairman of the
Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang was elected as the
CEO on 29 December 2009.

(b) The CEO provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of
the senior management, the CEO is also responsible for
ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meeting.
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The directors focus on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
Directors are in charge of the Company's day-to-day
management and operations. The directors are also
responsible for assisting the CEO in developing strategic
plans and formulating the company practices and
procedures, business objectives, and risk assessment for
the Board's approval.

Non-executive Directors 6.

All non-executive directors, including independent non-
executive directors, of the Company, have not been appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in the AGM in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors 7.

(a)

The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 23 September 2005 with written terms of reference
and revised on 27 March 2012 as disclosed on the
Company’s website. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee include the following:

i. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

i.  to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The
Committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration;
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ii. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

iv.  to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their
office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company;

v.  toreview and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

vi.  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Up to the date of this annual report, the members of the
remuneration committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun
Ying who acts as the chairman of the remuneration
committee, Dr. Gu Quan Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr.
Lee Man Tai. The majority of members of the
remuneration committee is comprised of independent
non-executive directors of the Company.

The number of remuneration committee meeting held
during the year and record of individual attendance of
members, on a named basis, at meetings was set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report. The remuneration committee had reviewed and
approved the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
was set up by the remuneration committee on the basis
of their merit, qualification and competence.
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(e)  The emolument of the directors of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

(f)  The Group's share option scheme as described in the
“Report of the directors” was approved at the general
meeting of the Company on 25 June 2013 and adopted
as the Group's long-term incentive scheme.

8. Nomination of Directors 8.

The Company has established a nomination committee since
27 March 2012 with written terms of reference and amended
on 27 August 2013 as disclosed on the Company’s website.
The primary functions of the nomination committee include the
following:

to review the structure, size and composition (including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

i. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
the members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships on merits and
against objective criteria, with due regard on the benefits
of diversity on the Board, especially to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

ii. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

iv. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the CEO, taking into account
the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, diversity and experience in the future; and
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v.  to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
to review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually.

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board of
directors with a diversity of skills and experience. The selection
and proposed appointment of the Directors are submitted to
the nomination committee of the Company for consideration
prior to Board approval, and the re-election of Directors is
conducted in accordance with the Articles. The criteria of
assessing a candidate include his/her ability to devote sufficient
time and attention to participate in the affairs of the Company
including the attendance of Board meetings and serving on
committees, to bring business experience to the Board and to
contribute to the Board diversity. If the candidate is proposed
to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director, his/
her independence shall be assessed in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The totality of the
candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall be
evaluated in assessing his/her suitability.

Up to the date of this annual report, the members of the
nomination committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun Ying who
acts as the chairman of the nomination committee, Dr. Gu
Quan Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr. Lee Man Tai. The majority
of members of the nomination committee is comprised of
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

The number of nomination committee meeting held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on a
named basis, at meetings held during was set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report. The
nomination committee had reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, made recommendations on the
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive directors.
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Auditors’ remuneration

For the financial year, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the
auditor of the Company, received HK$920,000 in respect of
audit service provided to the Group. The auditors’
remuneration has been duly approved by the audit committee
and there was no disagreement between the Board and the
audit committee on the selection and appointment of auditor.

Audit Committee

(a)

The audit committee of the Company was established on
30 January 2002. The written terms of reference of the
audit committee were revised on 27 March 2012 and 31
March 2016 as disclosed on the Company’s website. As
at the date of this annual report, the audit committee
comprises one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lee
Man Tai (chairman of the audit committee), Dr. Gu Quan
Rong, Mr. Zong Ketao and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying. Mr.
Lee Man Tai and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying are certified
public accountants for many years. In the opinion of the
Board, the members of the audit committee have
sufficient financial management expertise to discharge
their duties.

The number of audit committee meetings held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on
a named basis, at meetings held was set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

The audit committee is delegated by the Board to assess
matters related to the financial statements of accounts
and to provide recommendations and advices, including
but not limited to the followings:

i. to consider, and to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
audit fee and other terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of the external auditor;
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to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

to discuss with the external auditors before the
audit commences, the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations and ensure co-
ordination where more than one audit firm is
involved;

to develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-
audit services. For this purpose, external auditor
shall include any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The
Committee should report to the Board, identifying
any matters in respect of which it considers that
action or improvement needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

in reviewing, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to
the Board, the Committee should focus particularly
on:

a. any changes in accounting policies and
practice;

b.  major judgmental areas;

c.  significant adjustments resulting from the
audit;
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d. the going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

e.  compliance with accounting standards;

f. compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

g. the fairness and reasonableness of any
connected transaction and the impact of such
transaction on the profitability of the Group;

h. whether all relevant items have been
adequately disclosed in the Group's financial
statements and whether the disclosures give
a fair view of the Group’s financial
conditions;

any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

j- the cash flow position of the Group.

and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board;

vii.  in regard to vi. above:

a. members of the Committee must liaise with
the Board and senior management. The
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company’s auditors; and

b. the Committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and must give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the
Company'’s accountant, compliance officer or
auditors.
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to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of
management where necessary);

to discuss with the management the risk
managements and internal control systems and
ensure the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal
control systems and to review the Company’s
statements on risk management and internal
control systems (which are included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the Board;

to consider any findings of major investigations on
risk management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

(where an internal audit function exists) to review
the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company and to review monitor, the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

to conduct exit interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller or internal audit
control manager upon their resignation in order to
ascertain the reasons for his departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the
Board and to prepare summary of work reports for
inclusion in the Group's interim and annual reports;

to consider the appointment of any person to be a
Committee member, a company secretary, auditors
and accounting staff (including internal control
department) either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Committee member, company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff or dismissal of any of
them;
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xv. to consider the major findings of internal
investigations and management'’s response;

Xvi. to review the external auditor's management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and
management'’s response;

xvii. to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external
auditor's management letter;

xviii. to report to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions contained in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in (and as
amended from time to time) Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules; and

Xix. to consider other matters, as defined or assigned
by the Board from time to time.

In addition to the above tasks regarding to the
Company'’s financial statement, the audit committee
should also to consider any other matters, as defined by
the Board from time to time; and to conduct interviews
with any director, manager, financial controller upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his
departure.

The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility in
maintaining sound and effective internal control system
of the Group to safeguard investments of the
shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

The Group’s financial statements for the six months

ended 30 June 2020 and the year ended 31 December
2020 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
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12.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Chun Kau has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since June 2014. Mr. Chan is a solicitor in Hong
Kong. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board
procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations are
followed. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Shareholder Rights

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company’s articles of association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings, if requested by shareholders.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll,
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions set out in the notice of the forthcoming AGM of
the Company will be voted by poll, and the poll results will be
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange on or before the business day following the
shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, is available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at
shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual directors. During the year, there was no
significant change in the constitutional documents.
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EXRERME

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the written requisition (the “Requisitionists”) to
the Board or the Secretary of the Company (as the case may
be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association. Such
Requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures
as set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

The meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of the requisition. If within 21 days of the deposit of the
requisition the Directors fail to proceed to convene the EGM,
the Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionists as a result
of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionists by the Company.

The Articles of the Company provides that no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as Director at any general meeting unless a notice
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such
notice is given of his intention to propose that person for
election and also a notice by that person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
registered office or principal place of business in Hong Kong at
least seven clear days before the date of the general meeting.
Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a Director at the AGM, the following
documents must be validly served at the Company within the
period specified in the Articles, namely:

(1) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution to elect
a nominated candidate as a Director at the AGM;
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13.

14.

15.

Corporate

(2) a notice signed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be elected,;

(3) the nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and

(4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

Investor Relations

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Dividend Policy

The Company adopts a dividend policy, taking into
consideration all circumstances including the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividends: (i) the current
and projected financial performance of the Company; (i) the
growth and investment opportunities; (iii) other macro and
micro economic factors; and (iv) other factors or events that
the Board may consider relevant or appropriate from time to
time. The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the applicable laws and the Articles.

Directors’ Responsibility for Preparing
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and for
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

13.

14.

15.

Governance Report
TLEERERSE

(2) ERABBERARPEEDEIBAR
A

(3) MRIELEMRBIFEI1351IKE T
BOERBFEAZER &

4) ERAFREARTIEREBEAZERZ
EEAE -

REEBRE

BERAGRENESTGREZEMNER
NREBMPABFEART - RRAKEH
HRENZERARERBFTEARFZE
BEREEME

ARRRE ISR R E FE R BB R EE
EZRzaREEBEREKREE D
WEMETTH RS - UHEREE TRA QA
REORIIEN - REERDNRERITEIA
HEND N EREIE -

IR EBR

ARBFRA—ARBEE - £ IKIEH
SRBER @XEEMABR(BET
FIAZR) : (VAR ERE R IERE BRI
(NEREERS : (i) R0 RERME
KBERER: R(WEMESES TR AR
SEERABENERHER - IKNKETR
AXERARNERART WA RS
FTARRR -

ESYHRERMBBER2EMR

EEeNBHAREREAKENMG
W& - WHERPIERERIDETE R E KEA
SHERRE - EF S NRARAKENH
HF BT -

33

Annual Report &3 2020



Corporate Governance Report
LEERHRE

The appropriateness of the preparation of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis
largely depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions as detailed in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, which in particular include: (i) financial
support from a shareholder not to demand repayment within
12 months; (i) the Group being able to successfully persuade
contractors not to insist on repayment of the construction cost
payables; and (iii) the Group being able to raise adequate
funding through bank borrowings or otherwise. However, the
Company has not obtained any written confirmation that the
contractors will not insist on payment of the construction cost
payables. These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubts about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Save as disclosed above,
the Directors are not aware of any other events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Directors have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis,
taking into consideration the various factors set out in the
section headed “Additional disclosure regarding the modified
opinion” on pages 10 to 12 of this annual report.

By the order of the Board

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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The directors present herewith the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Principal Activity and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries include the
exploration, production and distribution of natural gas in the PRC,
and the sales of food and beverages and money lending business in
Hong Kong, the details of which are set out in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Company Ordinance”), including a fair review of
the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2020, and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business, can
be found in the section headed “CEQ’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. The above section
forms part of this report of the Directors.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Comprehensive Income on pages 52
to 53.

The state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2020 is set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 54 to 55.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the consolidated financial results and consolidated

assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 148.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set
out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties

Movements in investment properties during the year are set out in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2020 are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year,
together with reasons thereof are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 56 and Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2020 are set
out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer SYNCYS

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEBE
The largest supplier BARER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHENES

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

Composition of the Board

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Chief Executive Officer and
alternate director to Dr. Gu Quan Rong)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Gu Quan Rong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zong Ketao

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying

Mr. Lee Man Tai

Report of the Directors
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Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, Directors
retiring at the upcoming AGM will be eligible for re-election. Further
details of the Directors’ re-election will be set out in a circular of the
Company dispatched together with the notice of the AGM.

Directors’ Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 14 to 15 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ Interest and Short Position in Shares

As at 31 December 2020, none of the directors or chief executives of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Apart from the share option scheme disclosures in the section “Share
Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Schemes

The share option scheme which was adopted on 28 January 2002
(i.e. before the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange in February
2002) (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) has already expired on 28
January 2012. After its expiry, no further share option can be granted
under the Old Share Option Scheme. As at the beginning and the
end of the reporting period up to the date of this report, no option
remained outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme. No
option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed the Old Share
Option Scheme during both the reporting period and the
comparative period.

Following the expiry of the Old Share Option Scheme, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2013 (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) for the purposes of recognising and
acknowledging the contributions that directors, employees,
consultants, customers, suppliers, agents, partners, advisers or
contractors of the Group or an affiliate corporation, or trustee of
trust related to or controlled corporation of any of the foregoing (the
"“Eligible Participants”) had made or may make to the Group, and
providing the Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with the view to achieving the
following objectives, namely: (i) motivating the Eligible Participants to
optimise their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group; and (ii) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining
ongoing business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the
Group. A summary of the principal terms of the New Share Option
Scheme can be founded on pages 7 to 17 of the Company’s circular
dated 27 May 2013.
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The New Share Option Scheme had a life span of ten years running
from 25 June 2013 to 25 June 2023. Under the terms of the New
Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, grant options
to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for shares of the Company
(“Shares”). Initially, the maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) was
792,112,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the New Share Option Scheme on 25 June 2013. The
maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue, provided that the
maximum entitlement for any grantee being a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director or their associates shall be
capped at 0.1% of the shares in issue (or HK$5 million in value based
on the closing price of the shares underlying the options, whichever
is higher). Any grant exceeding these individual limits shall be subject
to shareholders’ approval, with the relevant grantees and their
associates abstaining from voting. The overall limit on the number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors at their sole discretion,
there is no general requirement of a minimum period for which an
Option must be held or any performance target which must be
satisfied or achieved before such an Option can be exercised. An
Option shall be exercisable at any time during an exercise period to
be notified by the Board to each grantee, provided that no Option
shall be exercisable later than ten years after its date of grant. The
subscription price of the options must be at least the highest of: (a)
the closing price of a Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business
day; and (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown
on the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a Share. HK$1.00 is payable by each Eligible
Participant to the Company on acceptance of an offer of an Option,
which shall be paid within 14 days from the date of offer.
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No share option has ever been granted under the New Share Option
Scheme since its adoption on 25 June 2013, nor has the Scheme
Mandate Limit originally obtained at the time of adoption of the New
Share Option Scheme ever been refreshed. As at the date of this
report, 792,112,000 options (representing 8.33% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company) are available for grant under
the New Share Option Scheme (i.e. the Scheme Mandate Limit as
originally obtained on the date of approval of the New Share Option
Scheme on 25 June 2013). As at the beginning and the end of the
reporting period up to the date of this report, no option remained
outstanding under the New Share Option Scheme. No option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed the New Share Option
Scheme during both the reporting period and the comparative
period.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Position

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than a director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

Number of
Name of Shareholders Nature of interests shares
REEL Ve X EEnE BROEE

Beneficial Owner

EnlEBA

U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group
Company Ltd.
(Note 1) (Hiz£ 1)

1,860,000,000

Beneficial Owner

EnlEAA

Cypress Dragons Limited
(Note 2) (ffzt2)

970,000,000

Interest of controlled
corporation

R AE

Wang Guoju (Note 3)
TEE (HiE3)

2,830,000,000
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Total number

Approximate

Number of  of shares and percentage of
underlying underlying issued share
shares shares capital

1R ROk  HEBTRE

BROHE HBEROEH BABED
4,045,654,762  5,905,654,762 62.13%
- 970,000,000 10.20%
4,045,654,762  6,875,654,762 72.33%
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Notes:

1. Based on the disclosure of interest (“DI") filings, U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group
Company Limited (“UK Prolific”) is interested in 1,860,000,000 shares of the
Company (“Shares”) and convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes"”) in the
principal amount of HK$679,670,000 due in 2041 not carrying any interest with
right to convert the Convertible Notes into 4,045,654,762 Shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.168 per Share. Based on the DI filings, UK Prolific is wholly owned
by Mr. Wang Guoju.

2. Based on the DI filings, Cypress Dragons Limited (“Cypress Dragons”), a
controlled corporation wholly owned by Mr. Wang Guoju, is interested in
970,000,000 Shares.

3. The deemed interests of Mr. Wang Guoju duplicates with the interest of shares
and underlying shares of UK Prolific in Note 1 above and the interest of shares of
Cypress Dragons in Note 2 above.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
and Conflict of Interests

None of the directors were interested in any business apart from the
Group'’s business which competed or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year.

Related and Connected Party Transactions
Details of the significant related party and connected transaction of
the Group under the Listing Rules are set out in Note 34 to the

financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Corporate Governance
The Company'’s corporate governance principles and practices are set

out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 16 to 34 of this
annual report.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the Company. All
incumbent directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code through the year
under review.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a framework for motivating staff,
and contributes to the community in which we conduct our
businesses and creating a sustainable return to the Group.

Working Conditions

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy in accordance with
the requirement set out in the CG Code. The Company recognizes
that the Board diversity is an essential element contributing to the
sustainable development of the Company. In designing the Board's
composition, the Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and educational background or professional experience.
A Board Diversity Policy, with the aim of enhancing the quality of the
Board's performance by diversity, was adopted on 27 August 2013
and revised on 31 March 2016.

The Group encourages its staff to participate in external seminars and
lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates on areas of legal,
compliance, financial accounting and reporting, and market industry
practices. Through these types of training, we believe that the Group
can increase its efficiency and productivity while overall reduction of
risk and uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional development
training for the Directors and senior management to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills which includes seminars and
workshops, updates on regulatory requirements and development
and corporate governance practices.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment
to the employees. In order to maintain a healthy and safe working
environment, the Group has upgraded and maintained tools, office
and IT equipment.

Environment Protection

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the Group. The
Group complies with environmental legislation, encourages
environmental protection and promotes environmental protection
awareness to all employees of the Group.

Community Involvement

The Group is committed to participating in community events from
time to time, and to the improvement of community well-being and
social services. The Group supports and encourages staff to actively
participate in a wide range of charitable events outside working
hours, to raise awareness and concern for the community, and to
inspire more people to take part in serving the community.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing responsibility to monitor adherence and
compliance with all significant legal and regulatory requirements.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are encouraged
to give their opinions regarding the environmental, social and
governance policies of the Group.
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This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with safety
working environments to employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be issued in due
course.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by directors and chief executives of the Group is
currently in force and was in force throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The audit
committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the
CG Code. The Group’s audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, who is of the opinion that such statements comply with
applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2020 have been audited by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
1837 B SEM 3R

-y
Ijif] BRI
ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Energy Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
52 to 147, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Exploration and evaluation assets, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets

Written off on exploration and evaluation assets of
HK$37,673,000 and impairment losses of HK$33,000,000,
HK$60,000,000 and HK$1,000,000 were recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2019 on property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and exploration and evaluation
assets respectively. Depreciation of approximately
HK$4,877,000 and amortisation of approximately
HK$16,458,000 were recognised for the year ended 31
December 2019 on property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. As mentioned in our auditor’s report of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019, we have been unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to ascertain the carrying amount of
these accounts’ balance brought forward from 31 December
2018, and thus there is a consequential effect on these
expenses recorded for the year ended 31 December 2019.

2. Deferred tax

Deferred tax credit of approximately HK$91,926,000 was
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2019. As mentioned
in our auditor’s report of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, we have
been unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
ascertain the carrying amount of this account as at 31
December 2018, and thus there is a consequential effect on
the deferred tax credit recorded for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Any adjustments to the figures as described from points 1 to 2 above
might have a consequential effect on the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019,
and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
1837 B SEM 3R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has suffered a loss of HK$14,696,000 and at the end of
reporting period, its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$329,524,000. These conditions indicate a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section and
the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Refer to Note 15 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group tests the amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets for impairment. This impairment test is significant to
our audit because the balance of interests in a Petroleum Contract in
relation to the drilling, exploration, exploitation and production of oil
and/or natural gas included in property, plant and equipment of
HK$924,661,000 and intangible assets of HK$1,199,563,000 as at
31 December 2020 are material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the identification of the related cash generating
units;

— Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

— Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow
projections;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and
discount rates);

—  Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the
external valuer engaged by client;

—  Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with the
external valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation process,
methodologies used and market evidence to support significant
judgments and assumptions applied in the valuation model,
and

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence.
We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets is supported by the available
evidence.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
1837 B SEM 3R

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the directors’ report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
evidence about the profit and loss effect from exploration and
evaluation assets, property, plant and equipment and intangible and
deferred tax which were recorded for the year ended 31 December
2019. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the
other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website
at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021

By BT S

BRBMRER G S VB RRARE
ZBE

EENEEARGRAMBERREBRE T FE
BN IRFF R M R EA B RRABGE
BRE YELRBESERNZXBEIRE -
ELXES BTUER—ERB)BRXREL B
PIEEMEB N - EEHRARAREZARRAE
MEMALTAZEERAE - SEBEBRAX
FERE  ERBEEEEAEAETHEZT
ETRERBEREREMFENERSERRL -
SHER PRI A R ARRF Sk SR AR EE A - W ELE Bl S B
BESEBAHBEN TR EEREREZFLR
EUBBRBRELVEERER @ AEHES/SEKR
AR B -

44 ¢

FRESERGEVBRRAAENERRE
CEZHBEREAGHMASHBEL:
http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-
regulations/standards/auditing-assurance/
auditre/

ASARAZEENRE 2 — 87 -

FEZESTMNEEAERAT
B RS FAT

HEE &

EiNHAEE
HEEBEEHIEP03614

BB —T-—F=A_-+WH

Annual Report 2§ 2020 51



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERmREMEEINER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —Z_ZF+_A=1+—HILtFE

REVENUE

Direct cost

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Staff costs

Expenses related to short-term leases

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Fair value gain/(loss) of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Fair value loss of investment properties

Impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets

Written off on exploration and
evaluation assets

Impairment and amortisation of
intangible assets

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Expenses charged under Petroleum
Contract

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income tax credit

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
after tax:

Items that may be reclassified to profit
or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
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Notes
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15
16

2020 2019
—E_ZHF —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
173,480 158,060
(45,406) (42,184)
7,672 3,205
(30,308) (24,316)
(20,081) (16,628)
(587) (6,077)
(23,335) (8,535)
(10,453) (7,233)
5,205 (26,758)
= (442)

(380) (920)

= (1,000)

= (37,673)
(22,867) (76,458)
= (33,000)
(12,365) (10,958)
(14,481) (24,933)
(25,187) (29,318)
(19,093) (185,168)
4,397 111,677
(14,696) (73,491)
104,651 (40,297)
906 (363)
90,861 (114,151)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FeERmREMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —_Z-_ZF+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$°000
et FET FET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE SFRE{EIE :
TO:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZE DN (14,173) (72,352)
Non-controlling interests JEIRR RE RS (523) (1,139)
(14,696) (73,491)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/  THIES2EMZE
(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO: (E8) %85 :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ V=N 90,478 (112,649)
Non-controlling interests JEIERR RS 383 (1,502)
90,861 (114,151)
LOSS PER SHARE (HK cents) BREECEW) 12
— Basic — HK (0.15) (0.76)
— Diluted —BE (0.15) (0.76)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e BT ISR R

At 31 December 2020 R —ZE_ZTF+_A=+—8

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment properties
Exploration and evaluation assets
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Account and note receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Amount due to a shareholder

Total current liabilities

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities
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Notes

et

15
16
17
18
19
21

22

23

24

27
26

2020 2019
—g-%8F —T-N%F
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#T FHETT
1,001,332 639,110
14,699 10,773
- 56,680
97,172 20,120
1,199,563 1,140,898
109,532 100,026
2,422,298 1,967,607
78,687 148,344
36,269 31,064
52,129 43,391
167,985 226,798
335,070 449,597
627,471 712,367
7,393 10,604
29,730 29,551
664,594 752,522
(329,524) (302,925)
2,092,774 1,664,682




Non-current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Other borrowings
Convertible notes

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

FERBEME
ﬁ{@ﬂEhLW\IE&FE n‘l'/TJ\

Eﬁﬂ%fé
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L £

[EEN

fFé

FERER
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 147 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Fa BRI R

At 31 December 2020 R—_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—H

2020 2019

—E-EHF —NF

Notes HK$’'000 HK$°000
et FET FET

25 - 61,692

27 4,236 3,283

28 389,400 -

29 87,769 79,199
481,405 144,174

1,611,369 1,520,508

30 475,267 475,267
1,124,915 1,034,437

1,600,182 1,509,704

11,187 10,804

1,611,369 1,520,508

FEL2ENAT B 2R MIERMENR T —F =
A tHOREEESHEREETE  WHT

JIEERRRE

B RFIALHA

Zhao Guogiang Gu Quan Rong

it B R B2
Director Director
2 EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GoRREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%

At 1 January 2019

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss:

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive loss for
the year

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2020
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

At 31 December 2020

56

RZE-NnE—A—H

REEEE
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RZTZZEFTZR
Eqr=l

IZEEF+ A=+ —RILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRRERAER
Convertible Non-
Issued Contributed Share notes Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity
B4 T8

ERTRE  REABH RORE REERE BERE  RHFR P FERER  BRAE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FET FET FET FET FET FET
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (176,996)  (1,080,937) 1,622,353 12,306 1,634,659
- - - - - (72,352) (72,352) (1,139) (73,491)
- - - - (40,297) - (40,297) (363) (40,660)
- - - - (40,297) (72,352) (112,649 (1,502) (114,151)
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (217,293)  (1,153,289) 1,509,704 10,804 1,520,508
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695828  (217,293) (1,153,289) 1,509,704 10,804 1,520,508
- - - - - (14,173) (14,173) (523) (14,696)

- - - - 104,651 - 104,651 906 105,557

- - - - 104,651 (14,173) 90,478 383 90,861
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695828  (112,642) (1,167,462) 1,600,182 11,187 1,611,369
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Interest income
Dividend income

Fair value loss on investment properties
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Exchange (gain)/loss, net

Reversal of expected credit losses
Loss on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of exploration and
evaluation assets

Written off on exploration and
evaluation assets

Impairment and amortisation of
intangible assets

Impairment of property, plant and

equipment

Operating profit before working capital

changes

Change in accounts and note receivables
Change in prepayments, deposits and

other receivables

Change in other payables and accruals

Net cash generated from operating

activities

i
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FARRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —_Z_ZF+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —ET—NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
(19,093) (185,168)
25,187 29,318
23,335 8,535
10,453 7,233
(1,907) (1,103)
= (890)

380 920
(5,205) 26,758
(57) 205
(233) (332)

= 442

= 81

= 1,000

= 37,673

22,867 76,458
= 33,000

55,727 34,130
74,989 291,391
(1,990) (10,018)
(70,209) 118,199
58,517 433,702
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GREERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E2—Z_ZF+_A=1+—HILtFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Acquisition of exploration and
evaluation assets

Proceeds received from disposal of
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Advance from/(repayment to)
a shareholder
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Proceeds from other borrowings
Interest paid
Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Effect on exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

58
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2020 2019
—EEHF —h&E
HK$’000 HK$°'000
FET FET
(447,733) (183,706)
(26,725) (17,876)
= 3,212

1,907 1,103
= 890
(472,551) (196,377)
179 (11,531)

= 45,075

= (110,423)
362,637 =
(6,871) (5,088)
(17,371) (5,683)
338,574 (87,650)
(75,460) 149,675
226,798 68,084
16,647 9,039
167,985 226,798
167,985 226,798
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 4 April 2001 under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of
business is located at Units 5611-5612, 56/F, The Center, 99
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") with
effect from 18 February 2002.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company, through its major subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in (i) oil and gas exploration; (ii) distribution of natural
gas; (iii) sales of food and beverages and (iv) money lending
business in Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), as at the date of issue of these consolidated
financial statements, U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company
Limited (“U.K. Prolific Petroleum”) is the single largest
substantial shareholder of the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2020

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2020. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result
in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years.

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H
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KU REBFRIREFREFRIIRS
IR 561 5611-5612 = °

AR —_EZE-_F_-_A+/\HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRE B AR SRR B BE

31 December 2020 —E=_ZTF+=-_A=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. BRI REEITEEBUBR

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HER @)

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — (a) %*W%ﬁT/é‘éﬁ: CHE R
effective 1 January 2020 (Continued) HEQ —RZBFF -

H‘fﬂtﬁ(@)

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have NS [B)NF 4 FE R B A MR B I R AE AR
been issued but are not yet effective. The application of ZHEI BB IS HREER - EAZ
these new HKFRSs will not have material impact on the S BB BREENE TS Y
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The REBHBEMBRRENERTY
Group has already commenced an assessment of the 2. AEED MBI EZENE]
impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position BBV BRELENZZE  HHR
to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a e ARSI BBV B HRE2EL
material impact on its results of operations and financial @E%ﬁﬁﬂ“‘éiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ &K
position. BAXE

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) THEMEERERNHFE &

issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is
to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant &%
and Equipment: Proceeds before BE KRR - ENHE
Intended Use Frig 508

BB GFHERE
) — BITEXHZ A

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous
Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

R g ERIE
L/EE kb

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-Current > AE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28,
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

CTE/ 2=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. BAHFITIREBETEBTKR

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HER @)
(Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) CREMEEARERNEFT &
issued but are not yet effective (Continued) BT BB ERELER| (&
Note 1: The amendments were originally intended to be effective for Ktit1: ZEERERREN_T—+&E—HF—
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date Az &mmA M AER - £ H
has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the HIREHE MBR o S IERIATRAT
amendments continues to be permitted. BRA
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of AEFR P EEEZEEIT N
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be BB ZE 252 ERB
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded RNZELEANT KA RS E 2
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have significant REEE NBISIRANEAEATE -
impact on the Group's result of operations and financial
positions.
BASIS OF PREPARATION 3. RmBREE
(a) Statement of compliance (a) & EH
The consolidated financial statements have been SEMBHRREBESTBEYEHRE
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial EA([HEABEHREER ] R -
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which also include ErdmppEasestimmae (55
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and etiiaE ) B2 EES AR
interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of ([BELHER ) ERE . FED
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting ReztERE - BEEAREN Z2ER
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the BEEEMEBBAZTINERA
applicable disclosure required by the Hong Kong AlEES EMABAN(TERETRE])
Company Ordinance and the applicable disclosure AR o

provisions of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board Listing Rules”).

Annual Report 2§ 2020 61

}7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRE B AR SRR B BE

31 December 2020 —E-_ZEF+_A=+—H

3.

62

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that year,
or in the year of the revision and future years if the
revision affects both current and future years.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk
of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

(i) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are measured at
fair values.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 3. mEEEE)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(b) FFEEERFALERR @)

(i) Going concern basis

(i) HEAEEEE

The directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, the appropriateness of which largely
depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions as detailed below.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
has suffered a loss of HK$14,696,000 and at the
end of reporting period, its current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$329,524,000.
These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore, the Group may not be able
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

The Group’s current liabilities as at 31 December
2020 are mainly attributable to property, plant
and equipment/exploration and evaluation
cost payables amounting to HK$474,364,000
(31 December 2019: HK$419,069,000). The
Directors of the Company are of the view that the
Group will be able to successfully persuade these
contractors not to insist on demanding repayment.
However, there is no certainty that these
contractors will not demand repayment.

ARBERCRFELEERE
MRBUR A BTG ERE - N XXPR
AL LB ERREE EE2HOR
REBERRZER -

HE-_Z-ZF+-A=1+—
HIEFE  ~5EEEEBE
14,696,000 8 7 + AR S H
R ERHEERERBEE
% 1329,524,0008 7T ° %%
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rFFHE R &8 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SR E AR EE

31 December 2020 —E=_ZTF+=-_A=+—H

3.

64

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 3.

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(i) Going concern basis (Continued)

In view of the net current liabilities position, the
Directors have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period
of not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period based on certain underlying
assumptions including (i) financial support from a
shareholder not to demand repayment within 12
months; (ii) the Group being able to successfully
persuade contractors not to insist on demanding
repayment of the construction cost payables; and
(iii) the Group being able to raise adequate funding
through bank borrowings or otherwise. Taking into
account the above assumptions, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the
twelve months from 31 December 2020.

MRBLEXE 7)
(b) FTEEERFELERR &)

(i) FREEEEE)

ENRDEBERERN  EF
BB TIE THEBRE - HX
SEEBEHARETTILR
+ZEABENE S RETEA
EITFAEN - (VRE—BR
?Z:EEMNIH NEREE
Z B E R (i) AN E A

T B 2 g PR 5 EsRE
ERNEEER: Rii)NEH
A ARITEEREM IS
ERMES - KEE LR
& ARTBEEFRAAEEK
EE% HEESABITREYZ
E-TF+RA=+—HE
TZEARNER HBEEL -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFTEE

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —Z-_ZF+_A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERESFTHE#®)

(a) Consolidation (Continued) (a) #=ERE (&)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to
that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

Joint arrangement

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control. Relevant activities are activities
that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has joint
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group
recognises in its consolidated financial statements, its
assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; its
liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly; its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and its expenses, including
its share of any expenses incurred jointly, in accordance
with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(c) Fore

(i)

(ii)

ign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Group's presentation currency. The functional
currency of the principal operating subsidiaries of
the Group is Renminbi. The directors consider that
choosing Hong Kong dollars as the presentation
currency best suits the needs of the shareholders
and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(iii)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Prope
in pr
depre
item

rty, plant and equipment, other than construction
ogress, are stated at cost less accumulated
ciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
of property, plant and equipment comprises its

purchase price and any directly attributable costs of

bringi
for its

ng the asset to its working condition and location
intended use.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERESFTHE#®)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) d) W% BERSE®)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance fees are recognised in profit or
loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 38 years
Leasehold improvements 3-6 years or over the term

of the lease; if shorter
Furniture and fixtures 3-8 years
Motor vehicles 6-10 years
Natural gas pipeline 10 years
Oil properties over the units of productions

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending for
installation, and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the year of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

()

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs
attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated
at its fair value based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of the investment property are recognised in
profit or loss for the year in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or a
property held for sale, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment or properties held for sale as appropriate,
and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Costs directly
associated with an exploratory wells (drilling cost and
others) are capitalised pending a determination of
whether sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas
reserves have been discovered. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs
are charged to profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred in the preliminary exploration stage
are written off as expense as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable,
relevant previously recognised exploration and evaluation
assets are reclassified as gas properties under property,
plant and equipment. These assets are assessed for
impairment before reclassification.

(i) Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is reviewed when facts and
circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of
an exploration and evaluation assets may exceed its
recoverable amount. When one or more of the
following events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, the Group shall perform an
impairment test in accordance with HKAS 36.

— the year for which the Group has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during
the year or will expire in the near future, and
is not expected to be renewed.

— substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation of natural
resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

— exploration for and evaluation of natural
resources in the specific area have not led to
the discovery of commercially viable
guantities of natural resources and the Group
has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets (Continued)

— sufficient data exist to indicate that, although
a development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to
be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

(g) Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets are
available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land and buildings
Motor vehicles

2-4 years
2-3 years

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or
otherwise the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-
term leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

The interests in petroleum production sharing
contracts were amortised on unit of production
method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

(ii)

0]

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts (see the
accounting policies in respect of impairment of
assets (other than financial assets) below). If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent
of its revaluation surplus.

Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

()

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case
of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

—  Financial assets at amortised cost; and

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(j) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if they

satisfy both of the following conditions:

—  the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less loss

allowance for expected credit losses.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if
they do not meet the conditions to be measured at
amortised cost and the conditions of debt
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates
an equity investment that is not held for trading as
at fair value through other comprehensive income

on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value with any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any
interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Loss allowances for expected credit losses

)

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of a default occurring as the
weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of
that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit losses
that result from default events on that financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Convertible notes

Convertible notes which entitle the holder to convert the
notes into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The fair value of any
derivative features embedded in the compound
instruments is included in the liability component. The
difference between the proceeds of issue of the
convertible notes and the fair values assigned to the
liability component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the notes into equity of the
Company, is included in equity as capital reserve. The
liability component is carried as a liability at amortised
cost using the effective interest method until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The derivative components
are measured at fair value with gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

If the identifiable consideration received by the Company
appears to be less than the fair value of the convertible
notes issued, the Company measures the unidentifiable
services received (to be received) as the difference
between the fair value of the convertible notes issued
and that of the identifiable consideration received, and
the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible notes based on
their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The
portion relating to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference to
the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the year between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised product or service exceeds one
year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Revenue from contracts with customers

(r)

(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is
satisfied over time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

—  the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

—  the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue
is recognised by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related

service.

(ii) Employment Ordinance long service

payments

Certain employees of the Group have completed
the required number of years of service under the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“Employment Ordinance”) to be eligible for long
service payments upon termination of their
employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments where the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Employment

Ordinance.

(iii) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves

the payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

4. EAEHBE®)

(t)

(u)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7

BERA

e ZEXEEREREE(R
E-BERBEHABERERESK
HEZEE) BEREEZEBERAE
TEAERELEEERNLZ — &
D BEERMEERB EAIHEAE
REMBILERBL - BEFH
REBEREERX CHERENER
HIREMRBBRERA - T5iea
BERBAERZEERANTIRR

—REARBERSEEREE
ZEEZME  AERBREARZE
ERASRIVEBHZEENRX
EREREXMETE - EMMEER
ERRAEEERAREEER(E
FRIRBISEEREEMIEL 2B
BRIRIN) 2 B ER AR Z i1
fB-

FAEMEERARELEHEER
=R
BT &R
1l BE & 22 i 5E AN 5 B 15 & P 75 16

30 BRI AT 40 B - B e SR A8
Bh o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERESFTHE#®)

(v) Taxation (v) F\

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Segment reporting

(x)

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements are
identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources and
assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of
business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of productions processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(x) Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited &

The entity and the entities comprising the
Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. ERESFTHE#®)

(y) Impairment of assets (other than financial

(y) EE(FEEEREE)RE

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except investment properties, investments, deferred tax
assets and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(z) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

(aa) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis

The Directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that
the Group will be able to operate as a going concern in
the foreseeable future, which is a critical judgement that
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The assessment
of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The
Directors consider that, after taking into account of all
major events or conditions, which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption as
set out in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the capability to continue as a
going concern.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Impairment on exploration and evaluation
assets, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group tests the exploration and evaluation assets, oil
properties and construction in progress under property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets relating to
Kashi Project (“Kashi Project Assets”) for impairment
according to accounting policies stated in Notes 4(f), 4(h)
and 4(y) to the consolidated financial statements. The
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating
unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions and estimates.
While conducting an impairment review of the assets, the
Group makes certain judgement in making assumptions
including the volume of gas to be extracted during the
forecast period, the timing in commencing the
development stage and commercial production, future
gas prices and production costs, changes in these
estimates may result in significant variance to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In estimating the value in use of
Kashi Project Assets, the Group has made reference to
the natural gas price based on the selling price
information and other documents exchanged and items
agreed during the joint committee meeting between the
representative of CNPC and the Group. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of Kashi Project
Assets was approximately HK$2,221,396,000 (2019:
approximately HK$1,777,622,000). No impairment
losses on Kashi Project Assets (2019: approximately
HK$94,000,000) were recognised during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Estimation of gas resources and/or reserves

(c)

Engineering estimates of the Group's gas reserves and
resources are inherently imprecise and represent only
approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the
engineering criteria that have to be met before estimated
gas reserves can be designated as “proved”. Proved
reserves estimates will be updated at least annually and
take into account recent production and technical
information about each field. In addition, as prices and
cost levels change from year to year, the estimate of
proved reserves also changes. The change will be
considered as a change in estimation for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in related
depreciation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
amortisation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Amortisation rates are determined
based on estimated proved reserve quantities (the
denominator) and capitalised costs of producing
properties (the numerator). Producing properties’
capitalised costs are amortised based on the unit-of-
production method.

Recognition of deferred income tax assets

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements, deferred income tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be
utilised, and it is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
assets are realised. In determining the deferred income tax
assets to be recognised, management is required to
estimate the future applicable tax rate for each subsidiary
of the Company at each tax jurisdiction and the profitability
of each subsidiary, so as to estimate the future utilisation of
tax losses. Any difference between these estimates and the
actual outcome will impact the Group’s result in the year in
which the actual outcome is determined.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(d) Revenue

Pursuant to the Petroleum Contract disclosed in Note 19
to the consolidated financial statements, China Era
Energy Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China
Era”) is entitled to gas generated from the Akemomu
Gas Field during the exploration, development and
production period in accordance to the entitlement
method stated on the Petroleum Contract. According to
the Petroleum Contract, all gas produced from the
Akemomu Gas Field should be sold to China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC"), unless otherwise
agreed. By the resolution of the Joint Management
Committee of North Kashi Block Cooperation Project
received on 25 July 2019, the filing of the ODP of the
Akemomu Gas Field was completed on 8 July 2019 and
the development stage commenced with effect from 9
July 2019. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 28 April 2020, the GSA was signed on 27 April
2020. Following the operation of the new gas processing
facilities on 1 July 2020, the Joint Management
Committee of North Kashi Block Cooperation Project
resolved that the commercial production stage was
commenced with effect from 1 October 2020. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, approximately
446,058,000 (2019: 302,272,000) cubic meters of gas
was produced by the jointly controlled operation.
Therefore, the Directors considered that the conditions
for revenue recognition were met during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(e) Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker in order to allocate reserves to the
segment and to assess its performance. In accordance with the
Group’s internal organization and reporting structure, the
operating segments are based on nature of business.

The Group has the following three reportable segments:

The Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural Gas
segment is engaged in the exploration, development,
production and sales of natural gas and the usage of pipeline
for distribution of natural gas.

The Sales of Food and Beverages Business segment is engaged
in the sales of food and beverages.

The Money Lending Business segment is engaged in provision
of loans to third parties.

5.

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —Z-_ZF+_A=+—H

AR R EELST 2

At RERENEEZRR (&)
(e) EHWEEZHE

BREBEERBTBREEAEIW 5
EMERNeREEREEES
FIELHE - CEREETERER
B R EE R 2 KI5 N -
MAKRBERELBERAEBZE
BN EE LG - ZEhEThRE
THREWRES - EREATERT
[ B BKF -

REREAH  AEBFEBLER
= EMEIRERH R RBERE

[RABLEEDZER - FEB VIR
RUAKE R Z EERRE S AR

i‘jJD o NEERREILIERE M HBA

BERAXBNENA BT 2 ER B
AEASE - ;":P@?EEE&IE&,%
- AR ATIE DT o

Wzt & 7 &R & #

AEBIBBEETELERRETHEND
WL - BEEELEDE - Ao
A ET T HE R - RIEAEEN R
MRS REDBIIRER S

é‘J o

AREEA NI={EAR 2K E :
ARREER - EERDHDE - HEXRA
REER - % EENMEHENEREED

HERMMABEBIE  KEHERM
R BRI 2 2675 o
MEXBD R - EREERTE=T -

Annual Report 4 2020 93



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n'.F

SR IEERaRM EE

31 December 2020 — T —_ZTF+_-_HF=+—H

94

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a) Information about reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss and other

information

For the year ended
31 December 2020

Revenue from external customers

Reportable segment loss before

income tax

Segment results included:
Interest income
Interest expense

Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use

assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Income tax credit

Addition to capital expenditures

As at 31 December 2020

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities

China Energy Development Holdings Limited &
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The segment information provided to the Board for the
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 are as follows:
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REENERREMER
Exploration,
Production Sales of
and Food and Money
Distribution Beverages Lending
of Natural Gas Business Business Total
RAREE - HERER

EERAH BRI BEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET T FET
173,480 - - 173,480
(4,700) (1,187) (145) (6,032)
1,484 - - 1,484
(16,617) - - (16,617)
(22,410) (246) - (22,656)
(10,453) - - (10,453)
(22,867) - - (22,867)
4,397 - - 4,397
338,551 - - 338,551
2,617,568 1,004 18 2,618,590
(1,027,134) (315) - (1,027,449)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERDIBER 2

(Continued)

(a) Information about reportable segment () ERATERDBWE - BRI
revenue, profit or loss and other HEENEREEMER &)
information (Continued)

Exploration,
Production Sales of
and Food and Money
Distribution Beverages Lending
of Natural Gas Business Business Total
RAREE - HERMR
FEERDHE REEY WEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended BE-Z-hFt+=RA
31 December 2019 =t-HLEFE
Revenue from external customers  SME%F 2 Wiz 158,060 = = 158,060
Reportable segment loss before B TS5 Al 7] 2] 2
income tax g (137,024) (1,460) (168) (138,652)
Segment results included: NEFEERE
Interest income FEWA 1,083 - - 1,083
Interest expense MEFAL (19,867) - = (19,867)
Depreciation of property, plant ~ ¥1% « BiE R RGN E
and equipment (8,241) (245) - (8,486)
Depreciation of right-of-use GRREERE
assets (7,233) - - (7,233)
Amortisation of intangible assets /& E# i (16,458) = = (16,458)
Impairment of intangible assets & &R E (60,000) = = (60,000)
Impairment of property, plant )% K= KR ERE
and equipment (33,000) - - (33,000)
Impairment of exploration and BEREEEERE
evaluation assets (1,000) - - (1,000)
Written off on exploration and #4801 & (L & &=
evaluation assets (37,673) - = (37,673)
Income tax credit FEHE % 111,677 = = 111,677
Addition to capital expenditures 7N F S 1% A 255,778 = = 255,778
As at 31 December 2019 R-B—NE+=A
Sr=[g
Reportable segment assets RN HEE 2,269,952 1,422 19 2,271,393
Reportable segment liabilities AZRAHan (786,527) (205) - (786,732)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERDIBER &)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) TIEHAWHEAIEE - &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities ER8EZHIR
2020 2019
—EC-RE —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax MRETIE B AIE 18
Reportable segment loss before BRETISHIRI ] 285 2BE518
income tax (6,032) (138,652)
Other income HA A 494 1,748
Fair value gain/(loss) of financial assets IR AFEEFAEBZZE/E
at fair value through profit or loss EZ AT EEKE(EE) 5,205 (26,758)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair &R A FEEFGTABZZ
value through profit or loss CREEBE = (442)
Fair value loss of investment properties &Y% 2 N FEEFE (380) (920)
Finance costs BE KA (8,570) (9,451)
Unallocated head office and corporate RO A4 =R N A FIFI ST
expenses (9,810) (10,693)
Loss before income tax BRETISTLRIEE (19,093) (185,168)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Assets

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Convertible notes

Amount due to a shareholder
Other payables and accruals

Total liabilities

&E

AE2EWmDAEE
M - BB MERE
REME
H K
TEfRTSRIE
ﬁ@?ﬁ@#kﬁéz
TREE

W& RIRITHERR

R RgEk

&fE

BES R =E
EH;’EHXKTF
N — R BR R

His AN B

mEE

koEEER @)

(b) TE2HSHEFNHEE &

EREEZHE®)
2020 2019
—EoEE —ZT—AF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,618,590 2,271,393
56,545 534
- 56,680
12,205 18,459
36,269 31,064
33,759 39,074
2,757,368 2,417,204
1,027,449 786,732
87,769 79,199
29,730 29,551
1,051 1,214
1,145,999 896,696
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers:

Geographical markets
The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC")

Major product/service
Natural gas

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point of time

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7
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RARBE - —E-EF
HERDH et
HK$'000 HK$°'000
FHET FET
173,480 173,480
173,480 173,480
173,480 173,480




6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

(d)

with customers: (Continued)

Geographical markets
The PRC

Major product/service
Natural gas

Timing of revenue recognition

At a point of time

Sales of natural gas

HE ™S
PE

TEERRE

W 223 e B A P
A EATIE

The Group explores and sells natural gas to the customer.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to a
customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and the
customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

Revenue from major customers:

Exploration, Production and
Distribution of Natural Gas segment

Customer A
Customer B

RARIE - EER
PakichaR=il
EFPA
=FB
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(0 2HREFEFEHNZWE:

(%)
Exploration,
Production
and
Distribution 2019
of Natural Gas Total
KARENER - —ET—NF
EERDHE 5t
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
158,060 158,060
158,060 158,060
158,060 158,060
HEXAR

AEEHHREAEPHERAR -
HEREm EH#RER (AMEM®
RN TEEE) LEAIEFERTR
BEMEmIABITEETARERD
ERNE fn < AP AHERTRERR ©

(d) REXTEEF2WH :

2020 2019
= —F-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TBT
163,342 148,452
10,138 9,608
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

Wz K o3 ZRE L (4)

(e) Geographic information (e) HEEHR
TREVNAEEBE@INSER 2K
mRIERBEECEECHEBEEER
SN (THEEIERBIEBE]) D HT

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current assets
other than deferred tax assets (”Specified non-current
assets”).

Revenue from external customers  Specified non-current assets

HEF 2 ha EEERBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
= i “F-NF = i —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEr FET FET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &/ (FEfb2h) - - 57,138 62,176
The PRC H 173,480 158,060 2,255,628 1,805,405
173,480 158,060 2,312,766 1,867,581
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HMEWA
2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income F 2 A 1,907 1,929
Dividend income from financial assets at ~ REZAFEETABR 2SR
fair value through profit or loss BEZBREMWA = 890
Reversal of expected credit losses TREHEEEERE 233 332
Government subsidies (note) AT BG (B aE) 242 -
Administrative and management fee THEERERA
income 5,233 -
Others EA 57 54
7,672 3,205
note: M
Government subsidies represent the gross amount received from Employment BT BN EBERITREBR TR RO S E
Support Scheme provided by the government of Hong Kong Special HEIPEEHNEEE -
Administrative Region.
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FINANCE COSTS 8. MERAK
2020 2019
—ECEH —ZT-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET F&ET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFE = 5,088
Interest on other borrowings (Note 28) HitnaBERE (FiE28) 6,871 =
Interest on convertible notes (Note 29) AR EE R B (A 29) 8,570 7,732
Interest on other payables (Note 25) H A TR IBFIE (AFaE 25) 8,853 13,160
Interest on amount due to a shareholder Bt —ZREFHIEZFIE
(Note 26) (Htat26) - 1,719
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 27) HEABENB (Wit27) 893 1,619
25,187 29,318
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRFFBBIAIEIE
The Group's loss before income tax is stated after charging: AREERMESHAIERDENBR TS
15
2020 2019
—EDERF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Auditors’ remuneration Z SN & 920 850
Amortisation of intangible assets BiERVEE 22,867 16,458
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE = 60,000
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRAN(BREESEMHE)
remuneration):
Wages and salaries and other benefits TERE® REAMBET 19,994 16,534
Pension fund contributions RIKE 87 94
20,081 16,628
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group —E-EF+_A=+—HBEkKZ=Z—N
had no material forfeited contributions available to reduce its F+_A=+—0 ' AEBETEHITHEHRN
contributions to the pension schemes in future years. RIREFE R ERAKS TR H K

BVERERRESH ©
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fRE B AR SRR B BE

31 December 2020 —E=_ZTF+=-_A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT

The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income represents:

10. FTIEHIER

FeEskEMEEEERANTENR

2020 2019
i —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Current tax — the PRC BEARIE — AP
Charge for the year rEEER = -
Deferred tax credit (Note 21(a)) RIETRIEE R (71 21(a) 4,397 111,677
Total income tax credit FTiSiE e a5 4,397 111,677
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the BERAEEARFENEERTES -

Group did not have assessable profit for the year. Provision for
PRC enterprise income tax are calculated at the tax rate of 25%
(2019: 25%).

The reconciliation between income tax credit and loss before

ERBEBFEHRIELEE - PRCEMS
B 012 25% (ZE— NE : 25%) 2
REstE o

PSR % B2 5% PR 1S T AT S 1R 2 $ Bk 10

income tax is as follows: ™~
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-nF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax BRETISBLATE 1R (19,093) (185,168)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 16.5% B E165% (ZF—NF -
(2019: 16.5%) 16.5%) 5T B 2 IR (3,150) (30,553)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries ~ REMENEERKE 2 KB AT
operating in other jurisdiction METR 22 128 (10,847)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax #%TR%U\ZTM‘%%;
purposes (1,886) (585)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ NAJ T B2 2 5 2 £
tax purposes 364 3,379
Tax effect of temporary differences EREHEoMBTE (6) (73,458)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not AL ARERTIBBEZ
previously recognised MBTE (67) (46)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RNERZ RBARIBEIE 2 R
recognised TE 220 433
Income tax credit for the year FAMETER (4,397) (111,677)
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12.

Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

DIVIDEND 11. BRE

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 HE_Z-_ZEF+_A=1T—HIEFE
December 2020 (2019: Nil), nor has any dividend been WHIRMSKBERNKRE(ZE — N 5F
proposed since the end of reporting period. /) BREERETERREARE -
LOSS PER SHARE 12. BREBE

(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREXEE

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

Loss attributable to owners NARIHE AELEE
of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary & 317 & i@ A hNAE F 15 &
shares in issue

SREABIATBARAEE AR
AR A M E B (T BRI
FHBEE -

2020 2019
—g-8F -—T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
(14,173) (72,352)
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
REEH RZEH

9,505,344,000 9,505,344,000

HK Cents HK Cents
B BN
Basic loss per share BREAXREE (0.15) (0.76)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BRESREF

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share
as the potential ordinary shares on convertible notes are
anti-dilutive.

BE_Z_ZTF+ A=tk
T-NFT_A=1T—BHLHFE"
AR A BRERREZBEEBRAR
BEYR HEREIEEEEK
EXEEER -
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31 December 2020 —E-_ZEF+_A=+—H

13.

104

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEZME
The emoluments of each director, equivalent to key LBEFE/Me(HENTEEEAEME)
management compensation, are as follows: N

Executive directors
Zhao Guogiang

Non-executive directors
Gu Quan Rong

Independent non-executive
directors
Cheng Chun Ying
Lee Man Tai
Zong Ketao

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_2-_BF+-_A=+-HLHFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in-kind contributions remuneration

E e 1 RIKER
e  REWNGE at B FEeE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET
HTEE
bzl 1,183 206 = 1,389
FHTES
Brs 120 = = 120
BIXHTES
EIRE 120 = = 120
£33 120 = = 120
REbE 120 = = 120
1,663 206 = 1,869
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Executive directors
Zhao Guogiang

Non-executive directors
Gu Quan Rong

Independent non-executive
directors
Cheng Chun Ying
Lee Man Tai
Zong Ketao

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Company to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office during the year

BITES
HER

FHITES

Bas
BYFUTES
BiRE

FXF

REE

ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

13.

BEECHE ®)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—HLFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in-kind  contributions  remuneration

e 2 RIRTER
we REYAS FTEIE e
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
1,183 223 - 1,406
120 - - 120
120 - - 120
120 - - 120
120 - - 120
1,663 223 - 1,886

BE-_ZT-_TFE+-_A=+—HItFE "
BEEEREIRERETHNE(=Z
—NEF: E) BE-_ZT-_ZFTF+ A
=+—BIFEE  ARFTEREEL
& AR S| R INAREB K EA AL
SHERBEE(ZE—HLE  |&)o
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fRE B AR SRR B BE

31 December 2020 —E-_ZEF+_A=+—H

14.

106

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included one (2019: one) director whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of
the remaining four (2019: four) individuals are set out below:

Salaries and allowances e KoEah
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R 4Kt& F 5T 2 5%

The emoluments of the individual fall within the following
band:

14. REEEHMA L

RAFE AEELESESFMALERE
—&(ZFE-NAF: —R)ESF HM=
ERRE EXZFI0DH - Her& (=
T—NEF  WR) AL ZHMEIIWT

2020 2019
—g-8F —2-N%F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
3,803 4,576

36 56

3,839 4,632

BEANZHMNFTIIEE -

Number of individuals

EEAK

2020 2019

—g-8F —T-NF

HK$°000 HK$°000

F#T FHETT

Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,0008 7T 3 2
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000 % 7% 1,500,000 47T -

HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000 /& 7T 2 2,000,000 % 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments was paid or payable to the five highest paid
individuals (including Directors and other employees) as an
inducement to join the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office.

HE_Z_ZFK_Z—NLF+_-A
=t+—HLEFE BEREESESTHMA
T(BREEREMES) INREME
RIS ERBRSI MARNEE 2 & 5B
ER A (E -
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A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - MERKE
Leasehold land Leasehold  Furniture and Motor  Natural gas Oil  Construction
and buildings  improvements fixtures vehicles pipeline properties in progress Total
HETHEET HENERE  GARRE RE  RRREE ba).:tE ERIB ]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tz T Tz T T FEr T T

Cost WA
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-A - 1222 989 6,947 28,045 - - 37,203
Transferred from exploration ~ EEEBERIHEE

and evaluation assets (hi#18)

(Note 18) - - - - - 728,144 - 728 144
Additions RE - 279 57 - - 81 236,079 236,4%
Disposals & = - - (278) - - - (278)
Exchange differences EXES = (64) 27) (123) (750) (1) (4,216) (5181)
At31December2019and RN =T-AET-A=T-A

1 January 2020 R=%-%%-8-H - 1437 1,019 6,546 21,295 728,224 231,863 996,384
Additions RE - 340 102 - - 2,284 264,721 267,447
Transfer from investment ERORENE (W)

properties (Note 17) 56,300 - - - - - - 56,300
Transfer & - - - - - 490,696 (490,696) -
Exchange differences EXZE - 64 n 34 1985 84,051 2612 89,123
At 31 December 2020 W-E-E£+-A=t-A 56,300 1841 1,198 6,880 29,280 1,305,255 8,500 1,409,254

Accumulated depreciation  R3HTERH(E
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZF-nE-A-A - 78 672 461 4528 = = 10,600
Transferred from exploration ~ BEABBRRTEAE

and evaluation assets (hiz18)

(Note 18) - - - - - 305,692 - 305,692
Charge for the year TEEER - 64 87 839 2,668 4877 = 8535
Disposals e = = = (110) = = = (110)
Impairment o REER - - - - - 21,000 12000 3,000
Exchange differences EXER = (20) (19 (109) (209) (86) = (443)
At 31 December 2019 and m;—nﬁ B=t-8

1 January 2020 Z-5%-f-H - m 740 5,292 6,987 331,483 12,000 357,274
Charge for the year MEE% 617 110 n i 2604 19,409 - B3
Transfer & - - - - - 12,109 (12,109) -
Exchange difference EiEE = 58 60 318 675 26,093 109 21313
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EE+-B=1-A 617 940 877 6,088 10,306 389,094 - 407,922

Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 W-2-8%+-A=t+-H 55,683 901 ENA| 792 18,974 916,161 8,500 1,001,332
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1-A - 665 279 1,254 20,308 39,741 219,863 639,110
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n'ﬁ
31 De

15.

108

SR E AR EE

cember 2020 —E-_EF+—-A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.
(Continued)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
the Kashi Project (as defined and detailed in Note 19) annually.
These assets are used in the Group's Exploration, Production
and Distribution of Natural Gas segment. No impairment loss
was recognised for 2020 (2019: The reviews led to the
recognition of an impairment loss of HK$33,000,000) as the
carrying amount of the related cash-generating unit (“CGU")
for the Kashi Project approximates its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of the relevant assets has been determined
on the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow
method. The pre-tax discount rate used was 16.8% (2019:
15.8%).

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7

ME - BERRKRE®)

SFAEEHRTEE (E&MFIBRH
FE19) 2 AT B SR HEITRA c ZRFEE
ARAEBAARYE £EERDHES
P o 7f?¢ﬂiﬁﬁwma¢aée(—’f
—LEF: R ERHERBREREIE
33,000,000/%71) ARIRTIEE K1E RS
ReEABMN(ReEAENM]) Z2RM|
ERUE KBS - BEEEZ TG
SENEABRESREEAREEFH
BETUEE - TAZBEANERER
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A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Disclosures of lease-related items:

At 31 December: R+t=-—A=+—8:
Right-of-use assets EREEE

— Land and buildings — T RETF

— Motor vehicles — RE
Lease commitments of short-term leases %G HAFAE v fl G & IE

The maturity analysis, based on
undiscounted cash flow, of the Group’s
lease liabilities is as follows:

— Less than 1 year
— Between 1 and 2 years

—PRI1F
— 1825

Year ended 31 December
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {# R EEE 2 T EE A

— Land and buildings — T REF

— Motor vehicles — A=
Lease interests HEFE
Expenses related to short-term leases ERARBMEENSH
Total cash outflow for leases MER & AR
Additions to right-of-use assets FRAEEERE

The Group leases various land and buildings and motor vehicles.
Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 4
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

16.

BEt+-HA=1+—HLEE

AEEBEEREREIFRRES
MEETZEHADHT

EREEE
HEMRBIER 2 HE :
2020 2019
—g-®8F -—T- A%
HK$°000 HK$°000
Fx FET
10,122 6,759
4,577 4,014
14,699 10,773
59 55
7,921 11,261
4,436 3,325
12,357 14,586
6,229 5,544
4,224 1,689
10,453 7,233
893 1,619
587 6,077
17,958 11,760
13,629 11,503

AEEERET L RETIARRE - 8
EnE—REEA/H2E45F - BEHFR
RIEREEE R B IFR RSB R -

HEBRWEBE TR HEHEEE
TEREEENERSR -
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fRE B AR SRR B BE

31 December 2020 —E-_ZEF+_A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17.
At 1 January n—H—AH
Fair value losses NEEEEE
Transferred to property, plant and HEEYE - WE R&E
equipment (Note 15) (K17t 15)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at the date
of transfer to property, plant and equipment and at 31
December 2019 have been arrived at on open market value
basis carried out by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting
Limited (“APAC"), an independent valuer who holds a
recognised and relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the location and category of the
investment properties being valued.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair
value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing
fair value balance is provided below:

Opening balance (level 3 recurring FOER(E=REE N

fair value) AFEE)
Fair value losses (#) NEEEEEG®)
Transferred to property, plant and EEREYE - WE R
equipment (Note 15) (Kiat 15)

FRER(FREFKE
NHEE)

Closing balance (level 3 recurring
fair value)

(#) Include gains or losses for assets held
at end of reporting period Wz sk i 18

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including

those for assets held at end of reporting period are presented

in fair value loss of investment properties in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

110
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BREWZE

2020 2019
—E-%F —TNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
56,680 57,600
(380) (920)
(56,300) -

= 56,680

AEBZEBRENEREBENE - BEX
wEZAR_ZE-NE+A=+—H
ZRAFEERBIGEMDKEEN G
NERAERAB(TEKR])ARRATSE
BEREEEY - ZfAERMERERR KA
MEXERLAEEREMEMELE
NIRRT BAR B

REMEZAFEEBE=RAKELR
FEENE - FVIRFRAFEERESHRZ
HERIT

#) BERBERRAFEEZ

2020 2019
—ECEHF —FNF
HK$°000 HK$°'000
FET FET
56,680 57,600
(380) (920)
(56,300) =

= 56,680

= (920)

RIBRER 2 WA ERARE (BRERER
SHRABEEZ WA BB REa1E
s MEMEERERZIREDERFE
BEEEZ7 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value is determined by applying the direct comparison
approach which is based on prices realised on actual
transactions for properties with similar sizes, characters,

locations and other relevant factors.

Significant
Valuation technique unobservable inputs
BERFAEBE
EE R BARE

Direct comparison method Market selling price
(transacted price)
per square metre

BYEARMHEE

(RHEH)

EERLBE

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual

use.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 there
were no transfers into or out of Level 3 or any other Level. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between Levels of the
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to market selling price risks at the end of
reporting period for those investment properties. If market
selling price had been 5% higher, the loss for the year ended
31 December 2019 would have been decreased by
HK$2,834,000. Had the relevant market selling price been 5%
lower, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the

loss.

Range

i
2020
—g-%F
HKS
BT

N/A

FEA

B IR EE

n'.R

31 December 2020 —Z-_ZF+_A=+—H

17.

2019
—NE
HK$
BT

12,486-
17,299

12,486-
17,299

BEWE #)

NHEEDEREBRLEE - 458 -

ENHAMHEERRCMERERERZH
IR B EREBELBREETE -
Effect on fair
value for
increase of
inputs Fair value
B A B IE i
ATEEZEE AT{EE
2020 2019
—EEF —NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Increase - 56,680
2 - 56,680

RNFEBEFEDNER LAY EERAR
ErEzasERc(REERAELEE
£)-

RBEZE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—BK=
E-NF+A=1T—HLFE  WEH
AREHE = RJERMEMBER - AEH
ZHRARNERER RS HRERR
FEEBR M85 -

LTSEESMNIRZEIREDERR
EHRNTISEERRET - WMHEEE
5% BlBE-_ZT—-AF+= A
=+ —HIEFEZEERRIL 2,834,000

BT e MBEMMISEE TIK5% @ AIHE
BRERUSEERTE -
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n'.F

SR E AR EE

31 December 2020 —E=_ZTF+=-_A=+—H

18.

112

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

18.

Cost A
At 1 January n—H—H
Additions NE
Transferred to property, plant and EEZYE  BERRHE
equipment (Note 15) (Ktzt15)
Written off H1 85
Exchange differences MEH ZRE
At 31 December Rn+=ZRA=+—H
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE
At 1 January R—H—AR
Transferred to property, plant and HEZYE  BERXHE
equipment (Note 15) (Btzt15)
Written off 85
Impairment loss WIEE B
Exchange differences M =5
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~"
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December R+=ZHA=+—H

The exploration and evaluation assets represents costs directly
associated with exploratory wells (drilling cost and others) that
are capitalised and pending a determination of whether
sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas reserves have
been discovered.

As the development stage was commenced from 9 July 2019
as stated in Note 19, the Directors considered that the
exploration and evaluation assets capitalised in the previous
years and utilitised for generating revenue in the development
stage should be reclassified as oil properties under Property,
Plant and Equipment (Note 15).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no provision for
impairment loss (2019: HK$1,000,000) was recognised in profit
or loss as the carrying amount of the related CGU for the Kashi
Project approximates its recoverable amount.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited &

BERBABIERER AR

BREEEE
2020 2019
—g-%8F —T-N&
HK$’000 HK$7000
FET FHETT
22,698 817,378
71,104 19,282
= (728,144)
- (64,933)
6,135 (20,885)
99,937 22,698
2,578 343,154
= (305,692)
- (27,260)
- 1,000
187 (8,624)
2,765 2,578
97,172 20,120

BR LGB ER DR 2 R AR
A(ERAARE M) - HGERL - M
FEECRACRETHEENAEAELR
MR IRREE o

HREREEREE-_ZE—NFLANAB
HBHE (KT 19FTM) EEREER
BAFEEAMCINEREERAREL
Wz R EEERETSEAY
¥ - WMEAXEBETZABADEM T
15) °

HE-_Z-TF+-_A=1+—HIEFE -
Baﬁéﬂ%ﬁlﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁ%%iﬁiﬁiﬁuz,ﬂﬁ
FEE U E AR B & 58 - WEEBETE
RBERE(ZZF — LF : 1,000,000
JT) °
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19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
(Continued)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
the Kashi Project (as defined and detailed in Note 19) annually.
These assets are used in the Group’s Exploration, Production
and Distribution of Natural Gas segment. The recoverable
amount of the relevant assets has been determined on the
basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method.
The pre-tax discount rate used was 16.8% (2019: 15.8%).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost %S

At 1 January n—HA—AH
Exchange differences b Z 8

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

Accumulated amortisation and it #EREE
impairment

At 1 January n—HA—H
Amortisation By
Impairment loss (note) BEEE (fat)
Exchange differences b E 8

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

Carrying amount SREE

At 31 December RTZH=+—H

The intangible assets represent the interests in the Petroleum
Contract which were amortised on unit of production method.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, amortisation of
HK$22,867,000 (2019: HK$16,548,000) was provided. Details
of the contract as described as below:

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

18.

19.

HHRRFHEE @)

SFEAEEHETEE (T&KFBEK
FE19) 2B S BEITIRG - ZEEE
ARAEBRARDE FERDHED
o BB E 2 BT EARIRIR
ERmEFRBEEFRERTUEE - 1A
BB R 5168% (T —NLF
15.8%) °

BEE

2020 2019
i —F-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TETT
2,656,579 2,729,031
193,206 (72,452)
2,849,785 2,656,579
1,515,681 1,478,777
22,867 16,458

- 60,000
111,674 (39,554)
1,650,222 1,515,681
1,199,563 1,140,898

BEESEROAGOER  EIREEEN
FE - HE—_Z-_EF+-_A=+—~8H
IEFE - TR S5 R 22,867,000
T(ZZF— % : 16,548,000/ L) ° &
B2 FEBHMMT -

113
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19.

114

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

On 22 December 2008, China Era entered into the Petroleum
Contract with CNPC in relation to the drilling, exploration,
exploitation and production of oil and/or natural gas in North
Kashi Block, Tarim Basin in the PRC (the “Kashi Project”). CNPC
is a stated-owned company established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Petroleum Contract signed in December 2008,
China Era agreed to provide funds and apply its advanced
technology and managerial experience to cooperate with CNPC
for the development and production of crude oil and/or natural
gas in North Kashi Block on Tarim Basin in Xinjiang, the PRC.
The maximum term of the Petroleum Contract is 30 years from
1 June 2009, subject to extension.

Pursuant to Petroleum Contract, China Era shall bear all costs
required for the evaluation operations, and the development
costs shall be borne by CNPC and China Era in the proportions
of 51% and 49%, respectively. In addition, CNPC's portion of
operating costs shall be advanced by China Era and recovered
from the production of crude oil and/or natural gas.

Under the terms of the Petroleum Contract, the evaluation
costs, development costs and operating costs are to be
recovered according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil/gas
and investment recovery oil/gas. Remaining oil/gas, after cost
recovery, all applicable taxes and royalty that might apply in the
PRC, is share oil/gas, which is apportioned between 51% by
CNPC and 49% by China Era.

In March 2015, the Group has issued formal application to
CNPC to apply for a two-year extension of the exploration
period of the Kashi Project beyond the original deadline of 31
May 2015, as the exploration efforts in the cooperation site has
not been completed. On 6 December 2017, the Group and
CNPC entered into a supplemental agreement to extend the
exploration period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group has been carrying out exploration and evaluation
activities at the site and working with professional parties to
prepare data and information that are required for the ODP for
government approval before full production could be started.
Pursuant to the circular published by the State Council of the
People’s Republic of China on 27 February 2019, the ODP is no
longer required to be approved by the National Development
and Reform Commission but is only subject to new filing
requirements. Per the agreement with CNPC, the commercial
stage would be commenced when (i) the construction
infrastructure for gas production stated in the Kashi project at
Akemomu, North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, China (the
“Akemomu Gas Field”) is completed and being commenced
for production for 90 days; or (ii) when the total gas production
volume in the Akemomu Gas Field reached 300,000,000 cubic
meters of gas. The commencement date of commercial stage
would be confirmed and announced by joint committee
meeting afterwards. On 25 July 2019, the Group received a
resolution of the Joint Management Committee of North Kashi
Block Cooperation Project that the filing of the ODP of the
Akemomu Gas Field was completed on 8 July 2019 and the
development stage commenced from 9 July 2019. By the
resolution of the Joint Management Committee of North Kashi
Block Coorporation Project on 16 October 2020, the
commercial production stage was commenced with effect from
1 October 2020.

note:  No impairment loss of intangible assets (2019: HK$60,000,000) was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020 as the carrying
amount of the CGU for the Kashi Project approximates its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of the CGU for the Kashi Project was
HK$2,224,385,000 (2019: HK$1,777,622,000) based on value in use
calculation using discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair value
measurement) and by reference to the valuation report produced by
APAC. The pre-tax discount rate used for value in use calculations is
16.8% (2019: 15.8%) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

A IS SRR M EE
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9. BEEE#®)
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BEEGVRHE  BEEERN_ZT=
TE+HF—HRA -

Wet - RBEZZT-TF+-_A=1+—HLFE -
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Z Al YO £ FE A2,224,385,000/8 T ( = &
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19.

116

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Result for the year

9. BILEE®)
(a) "EEX£E

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group RBE_Z_TF+_HA=+—H
has recognised revenue approximately of IEFE ﬂi’ilﬁ_?_?i A
HK$163,342,000 (2019: HK$148,452,000) from the E-Z-TFNANRBMEUR

sales of natural gas arising from its interests in a
Petroleum Contract during the development period from
January 2020 to September 2020 and the commercial

#-E-FFTAZ-F-FF
+-ANEEEENEERER SR
B AN 2 B2 RARHE

production period from October 2020 to December 2020 U 25 #9163,342,0008 L (ZZE— 11
and the loss before income tax for the year for the sales £ : 148,452,000/ 7C) - MFE A
of natural gas was approximately HK$3,784,000 (2019: AARHEERMERABEEDNA

HK$135,548,000).

Assets and liabilities

Property, plant and equipment
Exploration and evaluation assets
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

() Commitments

Capital commitments:

Contracted but not provided for in
respect of:
— Property, plant and equipment
and exploration and evaluation
expenditures

3,784,000/ t( = & — L &
135,548,000 7T) °

(b) EEREE

2020 2019
—E_EF —T—AF
HK$°000 HK3$'000
FET FET
VI -~ BB KR A 925,161 617,343
MEAFEEE 97,172 20,120
B EE 1,199,563 1,140,898
FERIAE E 109,532 100,026
MENEE 248,533 358,271
mENAE (625,518) (712,269)
IERBERE (393,636) (64,975)
BEFE 1,560,807 1,459,414
() 7#&if
2020 2019
—E_EF —ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
BARAEE
BRIAEBRT T S IEEE -
— ¥ BER&ERDE
MEHERX
115,501 522,640

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IR EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2020 are as follows:

Name

AL

China Energy Resources Holdings Ltd

PRERERERAR

Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong
Kong) Limited

HERESE (FR)ARAT

China Era Energy Power Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited

PEERERIRE (BB BRAR

Zhong Neng Finance Limited

HEE BEERAR
Di Maria Limited
EENEERAR

Team Lucky Development Limited

AERRBRAT

Fortune Great Limited
EEERARA

RABEERARICIBRAR

(Karamay Fuhai Petroleum

Chemical Engineering Co., Limited)*

RUBKE SRR IERAR

RAEREERRARAT

(Karamay Weirun Gas Co., Limited)*

RABKEERRERAR

Form of business
structure

EXERTA

Limited liability company

Limited liability company

BRAA
Limited liability company
BRAF

Limited liability company
BRAF

Limited liability company
BRAR

Limited liability company

ARAHF

Limited liability company

ARA

=111

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
HERAL/
RIER/ %

Hong Kong

&R

British Virgin Islands
RBRAES
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC

TE

PRC

T

Country/place of
operation

BEER BH

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
PRC
+H

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
X

PRC

e

PRC

T

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

* The English names are for identification only

n'.R

S PNk

TEMBRRZFHBNT

Principal activities

IREH

Sales of food and
beverages and
investment holding

BERRRAHER
RiZERR

Investment holding

REZR

Oil and gas
exploration

AR

Money lending
HiE

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Distribution of natural
gas
PERAR

Issued and fully paid

share capital

ERTRARRA

Ordinary share HK$1

EREREL

Ordinary share US$1
ERERIZT
Ordinary share HK$1
LEk1 BT

Ordinary share HK$1
LEk BT

Ordinary share
HK$10,000
LMk 10,0001

Ordinary share HK$2
Lak2ET

Ordinary share HK$1
TER1ET

Registered capital
RMB5,000,000

AMEAARS
5,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB130,000,000

AMERARE
130,000,0007T

* BEXEFBEHZS

RRRAR_F_FF+-_A=+—HZ

Percentage of
interests held
BERGRAL
Directly Indirectly
B BE
100% =
100% -
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
= 51%
- 2601%
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fRE B AR SRR B BE

31 December 2020 —E-_ZEF+_A=+—H

21. DEFERRED TAXATION

118

(a)

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from:

At 1 January 2019

Credited to profit or loss during
the year (note 10)

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020

Credited to profit or loss during
the year (note 10)
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2020

note:

R-—ZE—h&—A—H
SFAFRER
(Kia10)

PE 5 =R

R-ZZE—h&E+=A
—t—BR-ZE-_=F
—A—H

FFAFAREL
(K1zx10)

[ 5, =78

R-ZE-ZEF+=A
=+—H

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) represented deductible/taxable

temporary difference in relation to exploration and evaluation

activities in the PRC and the recoverability depends on the future

profitability of the Kashi Project.

1. EEBLE

@ FARGEMBIRNKPERZE
EHBREE/(AfE) AR RE
BT

BREMBEAE/(ABE)ELR :

Exploration
costs Tax losses Total
BhHR R A HIEEE B
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHEIT FHEIT FET
(Note)
(K17t)
(79,268) 67,619 (11,649)
91,926 19,751 111,677
2,146 (2,148) 2)
14,804 85,222 100,026
3,196 1,201 4,397
(1,165) 6,274 5,109
16,835 92,697 109,532
Kiat - EERBEE(ARE) RKRERESF

B 2 B ER e ATk B 2 BB P IR
ARBERE - AT E M BUR R B IR
BZARRERIES -

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

21. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

EERIAEE

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative Hong Kong tax losses of
approximate HK$18,061,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: HK$18,182,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the
entity. The Hong Kong tax losses will not expire under
the current relevant tax legislation.

10% PRC dividend withholding tax would be payable on
the distribution of undistributed profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC. As at 31 December
2020, no deferred tax liabilities have been recognised as
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries have no undistributed
profits (2019: Nil).

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —Z-_ZF+_A=+—H

HEFIE (&)

(%)

MU BHRRENZECHREBELHD
R -

2020 2019

il et -3 —E-NF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET BT

109,532 100,026
ANEERIEEN IR E B

REBWEFR=_Z—NF+=A

ST —REGAEAEUEEEYD
18,061,000 ;t( = & — Nl F -
18,182,000 L) MR ELER B E
E RRAREB ZHE@HIEE
BEIRAEENSAZEEE L
RIRFERBREF o BIFIRITHEBER
% BEBEBEBE TSR -

REEEIE10% D
rdl | b = NG ol S i Wl el =
BREFEHF HR-_ZT-_TE+-A
=+—H AATEKEZHENWES
REAWEHRRDIEEN(ZE—N
F|) UERRERRECHIESR
& o

DR AR B A 2
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GhAEEE EE:

n'ﬁ

31 December 2020 — = —

TEHRPz A=+—H

22. ACCOUNT AND NOTE RECEIVABLES

120

22. EUWERF

A RE

2020 2019
—E_EHF —T-AF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FAEIT
Account receivables (note (a)) FEMEE TR (M7 7E (a))

— Sales of natural gas — HERAR 78,694 48,820

Loan and interest receivables (note (b)) JERE Tk & F B (HfaE b))
— Others — HAh 37,100 37,100
115,794 85,920
Less: Expected credit losses B TEEEEEE (37.107) (37,104)
78,687 48,816
Note receivables (note (a)) EWEE (M7t @) - 99,528
78,687 148,344

note (a):

note (b):

China Energy Development Holdings Limited #El &

Sales of natural gas represent the receivables recognised under the
production sharing contract with CNPC for the Group's operation in
Kashi, the PRC. The Group recognises the revenue in relation to this
operation during the current year. Sales to customer is normally made
with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. The entire balance of account
receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, based on the invoice
dates, are not yet past due. The Group did not hold any collateral over
the balance.

Note receivables represent the repayments from CNPC through the
issue of bank’s acceptance bill with six months maturity period.

The balance of sales of natural gas are non-interest bearing. The
account receivables in the amount of approximately HK$78,334,000 are
pledged to secure the Group's other borrowings as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

Loan receivable from an independent third party, Sing Pao Media
Enterprises Limited (“Sing Pao”), which was unsecured, interest-bearing
at 1% per month and repayable within 1 year have been fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2011. The loan receivable from
Sing Pao is secured by a personal guarantee of a third party.

Sing Pao’s shares were listed on the SEHK but was delisted on 18
August 2015. During the year ended 31 December 2015, a winding-up
order was made against Sing Pao and the Group has already submitted
proof of debt form to liquidator of Sing Pao on 7 January 2016. On 2
November 2017, the Group's legal advisor was informed by the
liquidator that the process of realisation of assets of Sing Pao was
completed and there was unlikely to be any surplus assets for
distribution to creditors (including the Company) after payment of the
costs of the liquidation.

Kret () -

Bret (b) -

ERBFRERERAE

FARHEEBRIERPEAMEBI L 2 E
EDRANRAEBR P BERT 2 EBHER
ZIEWGRIE - REBRAFERZEBER
Wik - MBEPIEHMHEE —BRIZ30E60H
H{EEH#TT - ENBEZEHNEKRFREZ
BERR T _TFR-_FT-NFT+=A
=t+—BYESH - AEEWERZEHT
BEEIEAR

R R EIE T B OB EEEBEITRITANL
ER(HRANEA) EHZER -

FARWEZ HEARBTIE - R TF
+=A=+—H ' 478,334,000 T i Uk B
HREERAAEBHEMEBEEZERCZT
—NEF:E) -

e — %Ei%fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁﬂ
(TR 3R] BERAEER - 1RTAFE1%ET
B WER—FRER ZAEEREZEZ
T——F+-A=1+—HIEFERERME -
FEM R RE R — & 58 = 5 M A AR IER
# e

PRI Z BTN BB AT £ MR =
Z-RFENA+T\BRE -BE-_T—HF
+:ﬂ£+75¢¢§'%ﬁﬁﬁT%%

CMARBETER -T—RF-ALER
Wﬁmﬁ%A} RERFAR - R-_F—t
F+—AZR ARENEZERETRA
S KMOEEZRBE TR - DEBRK
AREFERBREERHIRTERA(RE
ARRE]) B A BEMERIE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

ACCOUNT AND NOTE RECEIVABLES 22. EWERR R EE (&)
(Continued)

The aging analysis of account receivables at the end of the TEUWER T
reporting period, presented based on the revenue recognition v
dates, and net of allowance, is as follows:

AN S PRER W R B B
e AT CNEREEB) 20T

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Within 3 months =EAA 78,687 48,820
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. RAFEEFABRZEZEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Equity securities, at fair value I A FE & (R AT EBER)
Listed in Hong Kong REALT 36,269 31,064
Fair value of listed equity securities ERTISHRE LMRAFS
based on quoted market price ANFEE(E-RATEE
(level 1 fair value measurement) =) 36,269 31,064
Analysed as: DR
Current assets MENVE B 36,269 31,064
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or EATFBEHAABRZEMNEELAT
loss are based on their current bid price in an active market. BEDERENGRMS 2 ERIZE -
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fRE B AR SRR B BE

31 December 2020 — T —_ZTF+_-_HF=+—H

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24, HEEWFTE - HERFEMNRK
PREPAYMENTS b1 |
2020 2019
—B-FF —ZT-NF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Other receivables, deposits and HAb WA « 518 RIERKIE
prepayments (note (a)) (Kt3E(a) 57,369 48,867
Refundable deposits AREET S
Mr. Wang Jian Guo (note (b)) TER L (FaE D)) 20,725 20,725
78,094 69,592
Less: Expected credit losses B TEEEEEE
Refundable deposit (note (b)) AREIET S (A3t (b)) (20,725) (20,725)
Other receivables and deposits Hith il ss ik & (5.240) (5,476)
(25,965) (26,201)
52,129 43,391

Movement in the expected credit losses in respect of other
receivables and deposits is as follows:

Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&%

Reversal of expected credit losses FRECTEREERE
during the year
Amount written off s S5

Rt-A=+t—Rz#&#H

Balance at 31 December

122

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7

EREMEEFBRZEZABMEERS

BEEHWNT -
2020 2019
= = —F-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#ET FAEIT
26,201 35,455
(236) (193)
= (9,061)
25,965 26,201




Notes to the Consolidated Fincmcial Statements

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

note (a):

note (b):

For the refundable deposits of HK$29,000,000, the Group agreed to
split it into two note receivables of HK$17,800,000 and HK$11,200,000
respectively with the maturity date on 31 August 2019. 8% per annum
of interest rate is charged for the note receivables and repayable on
maturity date. HK$11,200,000 of bill receivables was then assigned to
settle the shareholder loan in 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the
outstanding balance of note receivable included in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments is HK$12,000,000 (2019: HK$17,800,000),
extended to 31 August 2021 and charged at 4% per annum.

On 24 September 2007, Mr. Wang Jian Guo, an independent third
party and Joy Even International Limited (“Joy Even”), a subsidiary of
the Group, entered into the agreement in relation to the proposed
acquisition of the 51% equity interest in each of the target companies,
Bu Tuo County Wu Zhou Minerals Limited Liability Company (¥ #88 F
M % = A PR & 1T 2 &) and Hui Li County Wan Feng Mining Limited
Liability Company (& 12§ & @ % A R & (£ 2 7)) of an aggregate
consideration of RMB498 million (equivalent of HK$516 million) (the
“Agreement”). Both companies are limited liability companies
established in the PRC. The principal activities of both companies are in
the development of mines in the PRC. A refundable deposit of
HK$20,725,000 was paid (equivalent to RMB20,000,000) to Mr. Wang
Jian Guo upon signing of the agreement. On 31 July 2008, the
Company executed the Deed of termination regarding the proposed
acquisitions, whereby subject to the return of the refundable deposit,
both parties shall be released and discharged from their respective
obligations under the Agreement. On 10 March 2011, Joy Even issued a
Writ of Summons against Mr. Wang Jian Guo claiming the principal and
interest on the refundable deposits. On 18 June 2013, the Court of First
Instance adjudged that Mr. Wang Jian Guo shall pay to Joy Even the
sum of RMB22,723,287 or Hong Kong Dollar equivalent. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, all of the refundable deposits were impaired
and there is no provision for impairment (2019: Nil) charged to profit or
loss for the year.

B IR EE

n'.R

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

H tb & WK

H-RERFANSRK

I8 (4)

K&t (a) -

Kz ®)

: LAIR 2 $ 29,000,000 BT &

CAEE
RAESEDIFAMBEKREE  ¢EORA
17,800,000?571&11,200,000/%71 CRCE
—NENA=+—RHFH - BREEZFF
RE8%  WANFHEEE -R=ZT—~N
F - £%511,200,0008 T2 ERZHERE
BEDEAERBRRER - R=ZT=_TF
+ZA=1+—8 " st ARMEKRRE - &s

RENRBZERZEBEZABELE R A
12,000,000 7% 7t ( == — /L4 : 17,800,000
B HRERE-_Z-_—FNA=+—
HRFFIEAY% o

RZFETELFNAAZ+MA  TEBLAE
(ByE=7)mIEREERAT ((HIED)
(REEZHBAR) T [zl
AAEREZNE R EARMEZRMNEE
EREEAFLSEGELBEEEREER
AIEBZSI%RiE BREAARYE
498,000,000 7T (#8572 516,000,000/ 7T) ©
ME AR ARTFRKZZERAR - £2
¥BHAENPEMAEES - AEEENFT
BEERTEREAESINTRETS
20,725,000 7% 7t (4855 7 A & # 20,000,000
) RZEBZENFLA=+—8" ' KA
EUBARERREEEZRIERE - }Eﬁﬁt '
ERBTRER € - EHRRE AR A
Z2EE-RZZT—F=A+A8 " #fIEME
BRI ARLEASK - BAREESZ
AEERE -R_TE—=FA+/\B &
INEREHIR T B AR U%Jllﬁézﬁéﬁﬁ/\
R¥22,723287 T EEHTL - =TT
FERZFE-NF+_A=+—0 2R
EiZ&HERE - BYERAFE 218
BRERE (S —NF: &) -
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n'ﬁ

SR E AR EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZF4&+=-HA=+—H

25.

26.

124

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Non-current; JEMBD -

25. &

H Al FE Y SR R FESHRK

Property, plant and equipment/exploration  ¥1% - B M 2848, #h ik K st fh
and evaluation cost payables (note (a)) FEAT RS (B 52 (@)

Current: mED:

Property, plant and equipment/exploration  ¥13 - BiE M 2848, Hh 4k K T
and evaluation cost payables (note (a)) FER A (K7t (a))

Other payables and accruals (note (b)) H A FE AR IE K & ST RRIE (HY2E (b))

note (a): Property, plant and equipment/exploration and evaluation cost payables

represents balances payable in 2021 to sub-contractors engaged by the

Group to perform exploration, evaluation and development works on

the area designated in the Petroleum Contract as disclosed in notes 15

and 18 to the consolidated financial statements. The effective interest

rate of non-current property, plant and equipment/exploration and

evaluation cost payables was 6.98%.

note (b): Included above are the receipt in advance from CNPC amounted to

HK$105,162,000 (2019: HK$160,366,000).

BALANCE WITH RELATED PARTY

Amount due to a shareholder

26.

The amount due a shareholder is unsecured, interest-free
(2019: at fixed interest rate of 5%) and repayable on demand.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited &

BERBABIERER AR

2020 2019
—®-®F -—T N5
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#5 F#TT

- 61,692

474,364 499,968
153,107 212,399
627,471 712,367
627,471 774,059

Biet (a) - ANERE BISIRAMIFE 15 RISPAHNER - %

B Rt R R AR AR =T
—HEENTARERE  ROAGNEE
ZREETHER FERRABRTEZOER
BfEER o ERBIME - BE KRB HER
AN RA 2 B M E56.98% °

Bt ) - LR R SfERE A mER RKRHURR
105,162,000 7T( = % — /L4 : 160,366,000
AT °

ERRANE A T 2 &8

P — B IR R IR

N —BRRFIAREER 28(ZF

—NEF REEMNEKS%EF ) MERE
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A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEAE
Present value
Lease of lease
payments payments
HENR HESHRZBEE
2020 2020
. .
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year R—F A 7,921 7,393
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF(BEEREME) 4,436 4,236
12,357 11,629
Less: Future finance charges R ARKREEE R (728)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBGEZRE 11,629
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 B R 12EARBEEEZ
months (shown under current liabilities) SE(NREBEEETIR) (7,393)
Amount due for settlement after R1I2EA%RIEEEZEHE

12 months 4,236
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Within one year

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

Less: Future finance charges

Present value of lease liabilities

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12
months (shown under current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the average effective
borrowing rate was 6.98%. Interest rates are fixed at the
contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest

rate risk.

27. HEESE#®)

R—FR
F_FERFLF(BREREMF)

o RREEE M

HEREBEZRE

B R12ERAREIEEEZ
TE(NRBAEERNIR)

R1R2EARIMEEZER

Present value

Lease of lease
payments payments
MEMK BHENRZRE

2019 2019

—E-NF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
11,261 10,604
3,325 3,283
14,586 13,887
(699)
13,887
(10,604)
3,283

NR-ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—HBE-Z—Ah
F+-A=+—H FHEBREZFRE
6.98% ° FRTINAEHBEET - YEM

SARKEEEAFEENERR
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28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

OTHER BORROWINGS

Secured other borrowings — non-current AR H M EE

The other borrowings were denominated in RMB, charged at
8.5% per annum, repayable partly in 2 years and fully in 3
years from the drawdown date and pledged by the account
receivables of the Group (Note 22) under the Petroleum
Contract dated 22 December 2008, the supplemental contract
dated 6 December 2017, the second supplemental contract
dated 20 June 2019 and the gas sales agreement dated 27
April 2020.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 22 January 2009, the Company, Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor”), Mr. Wang Guoju, as
guarantor and beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of the Vendor, China Era, as a guarantor for the Vendor,
entered into the agreement (the “Agreement”) in relation to
proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in Totalbuild
Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“Totalbuild
Investments”). Totalbuild Investments held the entire issued
share capital of China Era which had entered into the
Petroleum Contract with CNPC as disclosed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 3 January 2011, all the conditions of the acquisition of the
first designated area of the Akemomu Gas Field (the "First
Designated Area”) and the entire issued share capital (the
“Acquisition”) of Totalbuild Investments and its subsidiaries (the
“Totalbuild Investments Group”) have been fulfilled.

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —Z-_ZF+_A=+—H

HibfE &
2020 2019
—g-8F —T-N%
HK$°000 HK$°000
F#T FHETT
389,400 =

HipfEEAANREEE  FH/X85%
BIRRZBE2FREE O M3FA
BE2H  URBEEHR-ZTTN\F+=
A-+tZRZAHA4 BHER=-F—t
F+ZARNBZMARAH EH;@?%*E
—NEFERNRAZTBEZE_DETHH
Eiﬁﬁfyf?imﬂ ‘tEl,Z%ELTz?z’J
AR B FEUAR KB A (B aE 22) -

29. R ERE

R-ZFFNF—A-+=H AQ7"
BIREBEERBRA T(fEEJ)&EIE
FEERETZERAREBET 2HEH
TERAZEREEAN)  FEFRUER
BEOZERN)RERRERAREEH
(BR)ERAB(THKANLE ) 2 100% I
ARz a] ek ([ ek ]) - HKaR
BERFATEFREMSHTHRA - M
REFERETE A MEBERIL T AM

BRI (IR E M BHRKRM T 19FMERE) -

R-ZE——F—A=0  WERMAREKR
RAZE-—HEHWR(E—HEEHLR])
AR EREMBAR(THAKRES
B 2B BTk (TRBER]D)Z
FTB IR ERK -
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29.

128

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

As a result of completion of the Acquisition and the First
Designated Area, the Tranche 1 consideration in the sum of
HK$2,558,000,000 was paid by the Company with Tranche 1
convertible notes of HK$2,558,000,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.168 each, to the Vendor including the shortfall
amount of HK$1,279,000,000 which was deposited with an
escrow agent pursuant to the Agreement. The sale loan
consideration payable by the Company in the sum of
HK$906,299,000 was satisfied by deducting the deposit in the
sum of HK$804,000,000 and with the balance of
HK$102,299,000 to be settled in cash or otherwise agreed.

According to the Agreement, the shortfall amount of
HK$1,279,000,000 convertible notes (“Shortfall Notes”) should
only be released to the Vendor upon the Company having
received a written certificate issued by the competent evaluator
confirming that the First Designated Area be evaluated on the
basis of unrisked economic evaluation on or before 31 May
2015 (the “Relevant Period”). No such written certificate was
received by the Company on or before 31 May 2015. Under
the terms of the Agreement, the Shortfall Notes have been
returned to the Company for cancellation. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, a gain of HK$92,459,000 was
recognised in profit or loss, and approximately
HK$1,309,405,000 related to equity component of the
convertible notes have been transferred from convertible notes
reserve to accumulated losses as the result of the cancellation
of convertible notes.

In addition, according to the Agreement, the Group is not
entitled to the benefits and interests of the second designated
area in the Akemomu Gas Field. A separate shareholders’
approval will be required for the Acquisition of the second
designated area by issuing additional convertible notes of not
more than HK$7,442,000,000 subjected to the fulfillment of
certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreement within the
Relevant Period.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited &

29.

BERBABIERER AR

AR EE &)

ARERWIEEERE —fETEHE - A
REIEIRSRERE0.168 B LM E 5 3%
775 —#£2,558,000,00078 7T 2 Al IR =
¥ A8 —#E X & 2,558,000,000 7%
T(ERERBEHEERNTERENE
#1,279,000,000/87T) © ARQ R ER 2 88
E B KB 906,299,000 7T B 175 18 0
1% % 804,000,000 Jt M & 1+ - M #8 58
102,299,000 ST BIILAIR © sk 17 7 2 H th
ARER -

RIEZ e Z=%81,279,000,000/8 T2
RBRER(ZBEEDETRAAF
BB EREEMEHEMESERSE
—EEHEER - E—RERA=1+—
Bzl ([ AR BEERRKRSHE

FHEREERAR - AR - ARER =
E-HAFAA=+ BT EERE
EREEEE - REZBBZGF - =8
EHREOREARERE -BE_T—OF

+ZA=+—B8LFE  KREIEEHEA
o A% 22 48 1 7Y 18 25 7 2R Uk 25 92,459,000
B TBRREBREZRISOMEE 2L
1,309,405,000 7% 7T B M A #2 iR Z= 15 6 1
HBREE2EERE -

BEAN - RIRZ R - ANR B B
BEARREE TR Mt M - 1

ERERERZBEERCHE TEGER
171N ER 3@ 7,442,000,000 78 T 2 EESMNA]
BMIRERWES T E - EREUS
B IRERAER - FAIEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The Tranche 1 zero coupon convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$2,558,000,000 with maturity in 30 years was
issued on 3 January 2011. The convertible notes do not bear
any interest and are freely transferable, provided that where
the convertible notes are intended to be transferred to a
connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Group
(other than the associates of the noteholder) such transfer shall
comply with the requirements under the Listing Rules and/or
requirements imposed by the SEHK, if any.

The noteholders may at any time during the 30 years from the
issue date convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, provided that (i)
no conversion rights attached to the convertible notes may be
exercised, to the extent that following such exercise, a holder
of the convertible notes and parties acting in concert with it,
taken together, will directly or indirectly, control or be
interested in 30% or more of the entire issued shares of the
Company (or in such percentage of the issued share capital of
the Company as may from time to time be specified in the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as being the level
for triggering a mandatory general offer); and (ii) no holder of
the convertible notes shall exercise the conversion right
attached to the convertible notes held by such holders if
immediately after such conversion, the public float of the
shares fall below the minimum public float requirement
stipulated under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules as required by
the SEHK. The conversion price of HK$0.168 per share is
subject to adjustment for consolidation, sub-division or
reclassification of shares, capital reduction, rights issues and
other events which have diluting effects on the issued share
capital of the Company.

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

29. AR EE &)

F-HZEBTBRBREREASEA
2,558,000,000 7% 7T © AR =ik 2 B HA
BAXTHH -_T——F— A=H#:t
=t+FER - TRREBETFTERTER
EE ENMREEREETEERE
A ALTUIIN REBBEEAL(EE
R EMMBA A BHEEZEERE LTR
BlZHRER,/ ST EMRZ AT (I
)

SERFAAIRBETRYEF =1TFR
BERF IR IR E B AR 0.168 /8 7T 2 &R 3 7B
DABMBREBRASELBR/ARBNE
PR - M) A RETTEIR - AT RS
BARBEE-—HITBHALEALEES
SIS A 30% A ERRAI 2
ERITROED (LBFBRRBBRAH
<7 RIRT 88 AN By BT A & 5 3% 08 il 14 2 T UK
BEIZARFACDHETIRAZADL)
AINSTTEE RI AR R AR P I S 3+ B (i)
HEERREK  RPDZARFRERZE
P £ A3 B 55 8.08 6k P AT BR B X FT AR TE
ZHEERRFRERTE - QI RBRERRS
BATNGBITEZSHAE AT BERE
R PR S itk - MAEEAL0.168/E 7T A
R &0 - IFAEKERH D48 - BB
AN~ R EME AR E BTN LS
BREZTRFEHHAE -
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SR E AR EE

cember 2020 —E-_EF+—-A=+—H

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined at the issuance of the convertible
notes. The fair value of the liability component, included in the
non-current liabilities, was calculated using a market interest
rate of equivalent non-convertible notes. The effective interest
rate of the liabilities component is 11% and the interest
expenses will be charged to profit or loss over the loan periods.
The equity component of the convertible notes, representing
the difference of the fair value of the convertible notes and the
fair value of the liabilities component, was included in the
owner’s equity and denoted as convertible notes reserves.

29. AR EE &)

BESY REDRBD A FEERET
ARERERET - BEMIZAFEE
(BRRIFRBDEE)ERRFIEAIERK
ERZMENEAE - AEED 2 BB
ER1M% MASRAIERERARNE
Ba ks - IRRERZERAD (KK
ABRREBEAFEERAEROATE
B2 ZR)FFABEAEAZREARKRRR
AR R

The movement of the principal amount, liability component AMEREARASERE  AEMLS MERID
and equity component of the convertible notes are as follows: BT :
Carrying amount
BREE
Liability Equity
component component
=Lt EEdo
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—H—H 71,467 695,828
Interest expenses (Note 8) MEFZ (K:E8) 7,732 =
As at 31 December 2019 and RN-T— j‘L¢+ EJF
at 1 January 2020 R -_TF— 79,199 695,828
Interest expenses (Note 8) FERZ (/3/721*8) 8,570 -
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-_FEFE+=-A=+—H 87,769 695,828
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

Up to 31 December 2020, convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$599,330,000 have converted into ordinary
shares of the Company. No convertible notes have been
converted during the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2019.

The convertible notes with outstanding principal amount of
HK$679,670,000 as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 have
maturity date falling 30 years from the date of issue on 3

January 2011.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
At 1 January and 31 December

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
At 1 January and 31 December

29. AR EE &)

BEE - Z_TF+_A=1+—H X&HE
7#$599,330,000/8 7T 2 A R RIEE H i
ARAREREE HEZ-_ZTER-F
—NWE+-A=1+—HIFE  WEAHR

BRBEL M -

RZEZEFR T NF+ZA=1+—
B Al ZEBZAEERASEA
679,670,000/ T + ME/HAR A7 (A
—E——F—-A=H)#EHR=1T="-

30. IR
2020 2019
i St 223 —E-NF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BHHE &5 RingH K-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEn FHET
EE
SREE0.05AT LR
K—A—Ak
+-A=1+—H 25,000,000,000 1,250,000 25,000,000,000 1,250,000
ERTRME:
BREE0.S BT TAR
R—A—Bk
+-RB=1+—H 9,505,344,000 475,267  9,505,344,000 475,267
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31.

132

HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries M B AR Z iR
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value B FEEF ARG
through profit or loss ZEREE
Other receivables, deposits and Hith RIS « =2e KIE
prepayments FIE
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHER
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hofth e 1< R IE I JEETRKIB
Amount due to a shareholder JEN — &R R FE
Net current assets RBEETFE

Total assets less current liabilities BEAERARBAE

Non-current liabilities RBEE
Convertible notes AR EE
Net assets EEFE
Equity e
Share capital [N
Reserves i
Total equity miER

The financial statement was approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 24 March 2021.

Zhao Guogiang
R R
Director

EE

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7

31. Z£RAAFHAMRR K

2020 2019
—E-FF —TNEF

Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Wizt TE7 FAET
1,548,295 1,546,233

1,548,295 1,546,233

36,269 31,064

12,066 18,299

29,263 34,866

77,598 84,229

1,045 1,204

29,730 29,551

30,775 30,755

46,823 53,474

1,595,118 1,599,707

87,769 79,199

87,769 79,199

1,507,349 1,520,508

30 475,267 475,267
32 1,032,082 1,045,241
1,507,349 1,520,508

EEgRN_T_—F=-A-THOBEH#E

REETIE LA B RE -

g

Gu Quan Rong

BER

Director

EE



Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

32. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —Z-_ZF+_A=+—H

32. &

() &&EHE

AEEZFRESBREEINGS
BakHEME2HAKRERARGERE

RnHEBRAZS -
(b) &RAF
Share  Convertible  Accumulated
premium  notes reserve losses Total
ROEE TRRFEERE 2R aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

1,679,187 695,828 (1,327,304) 1,139,060
= = (93,819) (93,819)

1,679,187 695828  (1,421,123)  1,045241
_ - (13,159) (13,159)

Company
Contributed
surplus
EARARR
HK$'000
TAT
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-N$-F—H 91,349
Total comprehensive loss for the year ZWF rEFRESE =
At 31 December 2019 RZZ2-n%+-R
=1+-A 91,349
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEEZABBESR =
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEF+Z4
=t+-H 91,349

1,679,187 695,828 (1,434,282) 1,032,082
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

134

(b) Company (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group
Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the value of the underlying assets of the
subsidiaries pursuant to the Group Reorganisation on 17
January 2002.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company under certain circumstances. It represents
the excess of the nominal value of shares issued by the
Company.

Convertible notes reserve
The convertible notes reserve represents the equity

component of the convertible notes issued (i.e. option to
convert the note into share capital).

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7

32. ®EE)
(b) AT (&)

AEEFEZMHER B L

BERRAE S

/Hﬂ$

BRARARBRDBRE_TT _F—
A+tBEAKEEAER  BARK
ME AR Z EBITRAMETZA
NGIE S A =D PN =l
BEEMEZER

‘m]

Bt et (8

REFASHESRARNAZHRE - B
wBEREE THERTADIKRT AR
AR - G EREBELARFC
BITRMEEZHR -

A HR S R fot 1
MR EREREC BITAIARSE

R (A L BREEER
KRB o



33.

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

B IR EE

n'.R

31 December 2020 —Z-_ZF+_A=+—H

33.

B EIE

REERFERRZERFAEMT

Contracted but not provided for in BERINERR T EERE -
respect of:
— property, plant and equipment and —WE BERRER

exploration and evaluation
expenditures
— capital contribution in a subsidiary

The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HK$115,501,000 (of which approximately HK$36,151,000
would be borne by CNPC) (2019: HK$522,640,000 of which
approximately HK$199,564,000 would be borne by CNPC) and
HK$129,800,000 (2019: HK$121,000,000) as at 31 December
2020 in respect of capital expenditure of exploration, production
and distribution of nature gas segment and capital contributions
in a subsidiary respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as those
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following material transactions with related
and connected parties which are not members of the Group:

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,

including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Hh IR R FHE B X

— HMNBARIEE

34.

2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
115,501 522,640
129,800 121,000

NRZE-_TF+-—A=+—0  K~EEBEH
FRARRD BT - EEFDENE AR
TUARE BB AR ZIEDREE
N 7 HE 49115,501,00058 T H & 4
36,151,0007% 7T i /1 B /A & B R g )

— T — A4 : 522,640,0008 T 0 E
#)199,564,000/% 7t A F B A B &
A HE ) £ 129,800,000 T ZE— h&:
121,000,000 7T ) °

BBRALIRS
AAREEBRARTBEA L 2B
RAETZRPENGARA B - I
BRAMGERE - RS M B RREMI
DBBEIN - mﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁéﬁﬂ
2B RBEALAUTEAR
TEEEAEMS

ETAEETIZEEABZHE (BEM

ARBBEEZN 28 BENZREVE
WEMIFE13 -
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RAIEKRE S A M THER ARG, an effective 51% owned
subsidiary of the Company, has non-controlling interests (NCI).
RIS KB M R B BR A F], an effective 26.01% owned
subsidiary of the Company, is a direct subsidiary of 52/ ¥k =

BERETIERAR.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of 525z
Bk E 8 A ML THMRAF, before intra-group eliminations,

is presented below:

35. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 35. FFiIERER

RRREBRERS1% R B AR
MIEKE S A BE TER AR HER =
Perges - ARRERER2601% EmZ
MBRRRUIBKEERRBERRE R

RAUBERESAMEIERAB ZEHE

LRSI

HiHR0) 25T -

BRARNBKESAMETBRARFE
B R B ERBE CRAt REER

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
For the year ended 31 December BE+=-A=1t—BHLEE
Revenue Wz 10,138 9,608
Loss for the year FNEE (714) (1,540)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2HEWE(E8) B85 307 (4,019)
Loss for the year allocated to NCI PETFHFERERZFAEBE (523) (1,139)
For the year ended 31 December BEt+t-A=1+—RHLEE
Net cash generated from/(used in) rEEBMS(FTR)
operating activities REFHE 1,938 (787)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash B&RERIREEMCRd)
equivalents pEiE=C 1,938 (787)
At 31 December Rt+=-—H=+—H
Current assets MENEE 3,875 2,127
Non-current assets FRBEE 19,033 20,394
Current liabilities wREAE (7,953) (7,873)
Net assets BEFE 14,955 14,648
Accumulated NCI EET IR R 11,187 10,804
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Cash available on demand BRERRH RS

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in

A IS SRR M EE

31 December 2020 —E=-ZFF+=-F=+—H

36. FERTMERMTE

(a) REREEARSEE

2020 2019
—®-®F —T N5
HK$°000 HK$°000
Fiti FETT
167,985 226,798

(b) EXERMEFD2EEEDH

TRETFALAKERERERD

liabilities arising from financing activities during the year: ZEE#
Amount Total liabilities
Other Bank duetoa Lease from financing
borrowings ~ borrowings  shareholder liabilities activities
Eft—% REREED
At E RITEE RRHE HESE A )-1
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FEr TET FET FET TEr
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NF-A—H - 65,931 39,363 - 105,294
Changes in cash flows: BeRECEE:
Repayment to a shareholder —ERRER = = (11,531) = (11,531)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RTEERMETE - 45,075 - - 45,075
Repayment of bank borrowings BEENEE - (110,423) = = (110,423)
Interest paid ENFIE - (5,088) = = (5,088)
Payment of lease liabilities HEaENT - - - (5,683) (5,683)
- (70,436) (11,531) (5,683) (87,650)
Non-cash changes FREE
— Recognition of lease liabilities —ERMEEE
Initial recognition MRTER - - - 6,624 6,624
Addition RE = = = 11,503 11,503
— Interest charged —BHRZHE - 5,088 1,719 1,619 8,426
— Exchange adjustments —ERHE - (583) = (176) (759)
- 4,505 1,719 19,570 25,794
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+-A
1 January 2020 =+-HRZEZ=
TE—-A—-H - - 29,551 13,887 43,438
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36.

138

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from

36. REREREBRWE @

(b) EXEBREERH 2REET

financing activities (Continued) (&)
Amount Total liabilities
Other Bank duetoa Lease from financing
borrowings ~ borrowings  shareholder liabilities activities
Bft—% REREED
AR & RITEE RRHE HEEE AR
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAT TAT FAT TAT
Changes in cash flows: REREZEE:
Advance from a shareholder A—ZRRER - - 179 - 179
Proceeds from other borrowings EhfEEmETA 362,637 - - - 362,637
Interest paid BIHS (6,871) - - - (6,871)
Payment of lease liabilities HEBREMNT - - - (17,371) (17.371)
355,766 - 179 (17,3711) 338,574
Non-cash changes FRLEE
— Addition —"E 3,663 - - - 3,663
— Recognition of lease liabilities —BRHEAE - - - 13,629 13,629
— Interest charged —EHRZIR 6,871 - - 893 7,764
— Exchange adjustments —ERHE 23,100 - - 591 23,691
33,634 - - 15,113 48,747
At 31 December 2020 N-B-BE+_AH
Sr=f 389,400 - 29,730 11,629 430,759
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38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

— To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

—  To support the Group's stability and growth; and

— To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company only, comprising share capital and
reserves of HK$475,267,000 (2019: HK$475,267,000) and
HK$1,124,915,000 (2019: HK$1,034,437,000) respectively as at
31 December 2020.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing
and projected profitability, projected operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities. The Group has not adopted any
formal dividend policy. Based on recommendations of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt. For details of cash flow forecast carried out by
the Directors, please refer to Note 3(b)(ii) “Going concern
basis”.
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37.

38.

HAEE

RZBE-_TF+-_A=+—H8 A&EET
EAIMEASABBB(ZZT—NF  8)-

EXEREE
AEEERASZARA -

— REAEEGEFELE  BERK
REEMESEE ADRIERE R
Kz

— XBAKEZREMMER R

— REERUMNBAEE 2 EREE

4,
BE ©

RZEZZTF+-_A=+—H ~EEE
AEBEBREARGEE AE LR - &
B IERAR N FEE D B AR 475,267,000 %
TT( ==& — N4 : 475,267,000/ 7T ) &
1,124,915,000% T( = & — L F:
1,034,437,000% 7T ) o

AEEBEG N ERRS MEEREAR
B ARREBEARBRERLOR - &
LEARBREROKED ZRBIAEE
ZAREETEREANYE BT RIAA
AR BMAKERERE - BAER
I RIBRIREERERS - AEELE
RAEFMEAREBER - RIBESHHRE
2F AKREBERXMBE - BITH
B~ B - A RBTHEREERA
B FaHEREARE BRESE
THRERERANFHE - F2HME
(b)) [ FHFELERERE] -
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39.

140

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities, such
as trade receivables, which arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in
the normal course of the Group’s business are foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price
risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Directors review and agree on policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency
exchange rates relates primarily to certain bank balances
and other receivables in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity to which the
balances relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is
primarily Hong Kong Dollar.

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a 3%
strengthen/weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi would have increased/decreased profit before
income tax by HK$206,000 (2019: HK$341,000). This
sensitivity analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial liabilities will fluctuate because
of the changes in market interest rates.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(o)

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from other
borrowings. The interest rates and terms of repayment of
interest-bearing borrowings are disclosed in Note 28.
Other borrowings in Note 28 at fixed interest rate are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has
not formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.
The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group are considered to be effective.

In 2020 and 2019, as the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities, the Group’s
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Except for
account receivables from sales of natural gas, loan and
interest receivables, and the other receivables and
deposits that were further explained in Notes 22 and 24
to the consolidated financial statements respectively, the
Group principal financial assets are the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and bank balances placed
in financial institution and reputable banks separately.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any credit risk exposure for those financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and bank balances. For
credit exposures to customers, Group management has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. For credit
exposures associated with the refundable deposits and
loan receivables, Group management had assessed the
credit quality of the debtors, taking into account their
financial position, their business developments and other
factors. In addition, the Group ensures that the amount
of the loan is within the limit set by the Group.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

142

China Energy Development Holdings Limited B g5R B 2R AR A 7

BRRER &)

(c) Credit risk (Continued) () EERE)
Accounts and note receivables FERERRRFEE
The Group measures loss allowances for accounts and REELEEREBEREESE
note receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected ZEEERBURI R BB CEE
credit losses. As the Group’s historical credit loss BiE BN ANER BT ZZEER
experience does not indicate significantly different loss KHRUEBLRTIRZEE DI EE
patterns for different customer segments, the loss BXEEAZR  WERBIRR
allowance based on past due status is not further SFEEEBETEEREETRH
distinguished between the Group’s different customer EER O EEE—FED
bases.
The following table provides information about the TREHEEENR -_ZE-_ZEKR_F
Group's exposure to credit risk and expected credit losses —NF+ZA=+T—BEREEEK
for account receivables as at 31 December 2020 and RRFHEZEERR MEHEE
2019: Jéé‘ﬁ%,azéfﬂ :
2020
—EIEF
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEREE IREAE BEEE
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000
(%) FET FET
Sales of natural gas: HEXRR
Current (not past due) BNER (R ER) 0.009% 78,694 7
Loan and other receivables: JE W B SR N B A R MR GROR
More than 1 year past due BHEAF LA L 100% 37,100 37,100
115,794 37,107
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. BIKERERE &)

(c) Credit risk (Continued) () EERE)
Accounts and note receivables (Continued) FEWEZRER (&)
2019
—E-NF
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHIESIE % BREAE E iR A
(%) HK$°000 HK$'000
(%) FET FET
Sales of natural gas: HEXAR :
Current (not past due) BNEA (ZR#uER) 0.003% 148,348 4
Loan and other receivables: FEUS B 3k Ko Bt fE W R IE
More than 1 year past due BEIFIA E 100.00% 37,100 37,100
185,448 37,104

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
account receivables during the year is as follows:

Balance at 1 January MR—A—B 2z &6

Expected credit losses recognised RERNER 2 TBREEERE
during the year

Expected credit losses reversed FABEREEEERLD
during the year

Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—B 2%

BHEBERXIREBEEEIFERE
BERMETHE - B ROIFRHE
DA R U 65 58 1 B BRI ) 2 1RO
AR~ BRI R AR B R R R
FRBEHFER 2 EEIRA 2 H 2=
Ho

FRNEBREWERRC EIEREHRS
E N

2020 2019
=E-FHF —F-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
37,104 37,243

3 =

- (139)

37,107 37,104
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

144

(d) Liquidity risk

BRRER &)

(d) REELES

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of each reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payment, is as follows:

At 31 December 2020
R-E-EF+-A=1-H

Other payables and accruals HEiER AR ESBR
Lease liabilities HEEE

Due to a shareholder - %Hx%fﬁlﬁ
Other borrowing HifEE

Other borrowings — interest portion ﬁwﬁg k=g
Convertible notes THRRE

At 31 December 2019
RZE-NF+-A=1-H

Other payables and accruals HEthEMFERETER
Lease liabilities HEEE

Due to a shareholder ER—BREHE
Convertible notes TRRER

China Energy Development Holdings Limited &

AEBBRBTERERB AT ME
HRBEeTE  UBREAERT
WAL G WENEEHMERE
BZRBELHER -

AEEZeRBERSEREHRE
NERARBERN R Z BB BB R
S €

Within In the In the third After
oneyear  secondyear to fifth years five years Total
R-%R REZE REZZRF REFR a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn TEx TEn FEn TEx
627,471 - - - 627,421
7,921 4,436 - - 12,357
29,730 - - - 29,730
- 71,880 311,520 - 389,400
33,099 33,099 26,479 - 92,677
- - - 679,670 679,670
698,221 115415 337,999 679,670 1,831,305
Within In the In the third After
one year secondyear o fifth years five years Total
R—%FR RE-F RIEZEDF RAFR st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET TET TET TET
712,367 66,000 - - 778,367
11,261 3325 - - 14,586
29,551 = = = 29,551
- - - 679,670 679,670
753,179 69,325 - 679,670 1,502,174

BERBABIERER AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(e)

The Directors have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period of not
less than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period, and other measures taken by the management as
referred to in Notes 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, and consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the twelve months from 31
December 2020.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity instruments classified as trading securities. All
of these investments are listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy and sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of
the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of
reporting period for those trading securities. If equity
price had been 5% higher, the loss for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have been decreased by
HK$1,813,000 (2019: HK$1,553,000). Had the relevant
equity price been 5% lower, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the loss.

A IS SRR M EE
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39. BiIKERER#®)
d) "BELERERE)

(e)

EZCFAEHASEREAEMS
BRI+ @A R
eREFILREEERDMNEME
e (A04R & B 75 3R 2% BT 53 3(b)(ii) AT 1
i) RAEASEBHEERCTEESR
& INENBZZE=FF+=H
=+ —HRBF =@ AR 28t
HELE -

BERER

AEBAZDBEREERF A
TAMELZBEAEBREHEAR -
IEREREY /LM

AEE 2z EMRERTEB AT L
me BARBHEBRESF ZRETY
RERERENEFRRERER R
HfTRIBERAZ L BARAE
BZRBESHFEEL - REMAE
REASEREZRBETED M
EZTDBL -

T EERFNBRE DT RN
WEMRBRAEERBRET © WK
NE®HEAS%  AHE-_ZT=-F
FH+-_A=Z+t—HULEFEZEES
21,813,000 T (ZF— & :
1,553,000/ 70) ° WA B AERE
T#5% - BIEEIERESHEE
RERFZE -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. IKERER#)

(f) Categories of financial instruments ) €EMIBEDE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Financial assets: EREE
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEEF AEBZRZ
profit or loss EREE 36,269 31,064
Financial assets measured at amortised ZESEK AT E 2 ©RIE E
cost (including cash and cash (BiEREERERES)
equivalents) 297,221 417,536
Financial liabilities: =L
Financial liabilities measured at REHEN ARG E S
amortised cost TRIBE 1,145,999 896,696
(g) Fair value () ATVEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and A= A BTSRRI L~ AN EE
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated £ g ééﬁiﬂE{EZEEEfﬁgﬁiﬁ
statement of financial position approximate their 287 AN EEREE

respective fair values.
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

41.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March
2021.
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40.

41.

AFEENE

RYEEEMS2EEZHARFERS
EBEFRZPHEEEMKEKERA
BRI 2B - TXERERRERQF
BEERZAFEENE  ERARE
RNFEEZGETEBABEY K=
AR -
FRBARE: AKEARFTERH
HERBRMSER 28
REEXREREZ
WECREHE) -
F_BBABE . FHAF-RZBEMN
SNeEESBBZE
EEALEETIR SE PN
B -
F=RBABE: BEXRBEZTATE
R ABIER °

AEEZHEANERE R BERE
BB B RN = (8 R (8
NS -

#ESRSMB®RR
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFBBEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2= Z T F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Results

RE

Revenue

(Loss)/profit before income
tax

Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Loss/(profit) attributable to
Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/profit attributable to
owners of the Company

Assets and liabilities

BEERAE

Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Attributable to owners of
the Company

148

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

—EBCEF —T-NF —T—)\F —T—+F —T—RF

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FEr FEr FEr FEr

g 173,480 158,060 477,789 13,039 1,117
BrET SRR (E18), & F

(19,093)  (185,168) 138,229  (241,627)  (165,489)

FrismiiE e, (Fx) 4,397 111,677 (111,041) 6,774 2,801

RNEE (E18) /5 (14,696) (73,491) 27,188  (234,853)  (162,688)
el ey tlay <5 Yl

GEFD 523 1,139 356 (657) =

RNRAREEB AEIG

(B518),/ & F) 14,173 72,352 27,544  (235,510)  (162,688)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

—EZBE —T-NEFE T\ T—+F —T—RE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FEr FEr FEr FET

BERE 2,757,368 2,417,204 2,411,573 2,349,479 2,337,043

a5 (1,145,999)  (896,696)  (776,914)  (648,239)  (531,380)

eI S (11,187) (10,804) (12,306) (11,780) =

N/NCIE ¥ =N Y
1,600,182 1,509,704 1,622,353 1,689,460 1,805,663
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